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k INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT -

To the Honorable Mayor and the Clty Counell

. of the City of Alton, Tx

Alton, Tx _
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business—type activities, each

major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City. of Alton, Tx, as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2015, and the related notesto the financial statements, which collectlvely compnse the City of Alton’s

- basic ﬁnanclal statements as listed in the table of contents,
' _Management s Responsibility for the Financial Smtements

‘Management is responsible for the preparation and fair. presentatlon of these financial statements in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of ﬁnanclal statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to ft‘aud or error, :

Audzmr s Responsibility

Our résponsibility is to express oplmons on these financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States..
Thosé standards require that we plan. and perform the audit to obtam reasonable assurance about whether the- ﬁnanclal
statements are free from material misstatement. : :

An audit involves perfmmmg procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. The procedures selected dépend on the aud:tor s judgment, including the assessment of the r isks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or érror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entlty s‘preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in orderto
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an oplmon onthe

cffectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion, An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accountmg esumates made by

: management as well as evaluating the overall presentatlon of the financial statements

- We beheve that the audit ev1denee we have obtamed is sufficient and applopnate to plowde a basis for our audlt

opinions.
Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Alton, Tx, as-of September 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and the
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles genera!ly accepted in the Umted States of America.

Emphasis of Matter -

Member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants & Texas Society of Certified Public Accountants
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As discussed in Note I to the ﬁnancnal statements, in 2015 the City 1mplcmented new accountmg guidarnice, GASB
Staternent No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and GASB Statement No.71, Pénsion Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date. Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters, ©

Other Matters

: Required Supplementary Information.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis on pages 4-9 be presented to supplement thie basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers itto be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods. of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s

responses fo our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic * -

financial statements. We do.not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited-
procedures do not pr ovide us with sufficient evldence to express an opinion or prov1de any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the " .
“City of Alton, Tx’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund -
financial statements, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
. statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
 U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Government.s', and Non-Profit .
' Orgamzatrons, and is also not a required part of the basic ﬁnanmal statements. :

The combmmg and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of fedei al awards are _
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other

records used to prepare the basic financial statements, Such' information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and

reconciling such information ditectly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial -

statements or to the basic. financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated i in aEl mater 1a1 respects in
1e1at10n to the basic financial statements as a whole :

The introductory section has not been subjected to thc auditing ploccdures apphed in the audit of the bas:c financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assur ance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Smndards

In accordance with Government Auditmg Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 22, 2016 on our
consideration of the City of Alton, Tx’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that reportisto
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
_and not to provide an opinion on internal control over fi nancial reporting or on compliance. That report is an mtegt al part
* ofan audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Alton Tx’s internal
~ control over financial reporting and comphance . ‘

Ffeet %fﬁ}x& (,’ﬁ/ﬁ A2
Noel Garza; CPA, PC -

Edinburg, Tx
April 22, 2016



Manegement’s Discussion and Analysis
CITY OF ALTON

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS A

In thls section of the Annual Fmanc.lal and Compliance Repott, we, the managers of CITY OF
ALTON, discuss and analyze the City's financial performance for the fiscal year ended
September-30, 2015, Please read it in conjunction with the Independent Auditors' Report on page
2, and the C1ty s Basic Financial Statements which begin on page 10

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The City's net position: increased by $427,531 as a result of this year's operations, While
net position of our business-type activities: decreased by $60,105 net position of our
_governmental activities: increased, by $487,636, However, net position of governmental
activities had a prior period adjustment that decreased net position by $2,495,854, and the
business activities had a prior period adjustment that decreased net position by $4,229

resulting in a total decrease in net posmon of $2,072,552.

; Durmg.the year, the City had expenses that were $ 209,698 more than the $5.49 million
. generated in tax and other revenues for governmental programs (before special items).

In the City's business-type activities, revenues increased from $2.49 t6‘$2.87 million (or .
‘3.9 percent) while expenses also increased from $1.95 to $1.94 million (or .5 percent).

~ The General Fund ended the year with a fund balan'ce of $688 434,

‘The resources available for approprlatlon were $30 thousand iess than budgeted expenses -
for the’ General Fund.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of ﬁnane:al statements. ’I‘he government—w1de financial
statements include the Statement of Net position and the Statement of Activities on pages 10 and
11, These provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a longer-
term view of the City's property and debt obligations and other financial matters. They reflect the
flow of total economic resources in a manner sumlar to the fi nancxal reports of a busmess
enterprise. : : :

Fund financial statements starting on page 13 report the City's operations in more detail than the -
government-wide statements by providing -information about the City's most significant funds.
For governmental activities, these statements tell how services were financed in the short term as
well as what resources remain for future spending. They reflect the flow of current financial
resources, and supply the basis for tax levies and the appropriations budget. For proprietary
activities, fund financial statements tell how goods or services of the City were sold to external
customers and how the sales revenues covered the expenses of the goods ot setvices. The
remaining statements, fiduciary statements (if applicable), provide financial information about
activities for which the Clty acts soiely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the
City. :




The notes to the financial statements (starting on page 25) provide narrative explanations or
additional data needed. for full disclosure in the gover. nment- w1de staternents or the fund ﬁnancxal
statements. :

The combmmg statements for non-major funds contain even more mformatlon about the Cltys '
: mdtwdual funds, :

'lieporfing the City as a Whole
The Statement of Net position and the Statement of Activities

The analysis of the City's overall financial condition and ‘operations begins on page 10. Iis
primary purpose is to show whether the City is befter off or worse off as a result of the year's
activities, The Statement of Net position includes all the City's assets and liabilities at the end of
the year while the Statement of Activities includes all the revenues and expenses generated by the -
City's operations during thie year. These app]y the accrual basis. of accountmg Wthh is the basns
used by private sector compames E . .

- All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is .
received or paid. The City's revenues are divided into those provided by outside parties who
share the costs of some . programs, such grants provided by the Outside Sources (general
révenues). All the City's assets are reported whether they serve the current year or future years..
Liabilities are considered regardless of whether they must be paid in the current or future years.

. These two statements report the City's net position and changes in them. The City's net position
(the difference between assets and liabilities) provide one measure of the City's financial health,
or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's. net position are one indicator
of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, To fully assess the overall health of
the City, however, you should consider non-financial factors as well, such as changes in the City 3
property tax base and the condition of the Cltys facilities,

In the Statement of Net posntlon and the Statement of Actmttcs we dmde the C:ty into two kinds
of act1v1tles : :

vaemmental activities—Most of the City's basic setvices are reported here, including
public safety, public works, culture and recreation, economic development and assistance, and
general administration, Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, charges for services, and state
and federal grants finance most of these activities. :

Business-type activities—The City charges a fee to “customers” to help it cover all or most
of the cost of providing services such as water, sewer, and solid waste services.



Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds
- Fund Financial Statements

‘The fund financial statements begin on page 13 and provide detailed information about the most
‘'significant funds—not the City as a -whole. Laws and/or confracts require the City to establish
some funds, such as grants received under the Environmental Protection Agency program. The
City's administration establishes several other funds to help it control and manage money for
particular purposes.. The City's two kinds of funds-govemmental and proprletary—use different
' .'accountmg approaches

Governmental funds—Most of the Cltys basic services are reported in governmental
funds. These use’ modified accrual accounting (a method that measures the receipt and
disbursement of cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash) and
report balances that are available for future spending. - The governmental fund statements provide
a detailed short-term view of the City's general operations and the basic services it provides. We
describe the differences between governmental *activities (reported in the Statement of Net

" position and the Statement of Activities) and govemmentai funds in reconciliation schedules. =

following each of the fund financial statements.

Proprietary funds-The City reports- the activities for which it charges users (whether
outside customers or other units of the City) in proprietary funds using the same accounting
" methods employed in the Statement of Net position and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the
City's enterprise funds (one category of proprietary funds) are the .business-type activities
reported in the government-wide statements but contammg more detail and addltlonal ‘

: 1nformat10n such as cash flows. — : : :

GOVERNMENT—WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

' 7Our analysis focuses on the net position (Table I) and changes in net posmon (Table 11} of the . -
- City's govemmenta] and busmess~type actmtles '

" Net position of the City's governmental activities decreased from $ 2.20 million to $ 19 million.
~ Unrestricted net position — the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day
- operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabhng legislation, or other legal

requxrements —was $222 356 at September 30, 2015.

In 201 5, net posmon of our business-type ac‘uwtle_s decreased by $64,334. '



Table I

City of ALTON
NET POSITION
Governmental Governmental Business-type ‘Business-type Total “Total
Activities Activities " Activities Activities a
- 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Current and other assets .3,622271 . 4,162,737 711,012 809,113 4,333,283 4,971,850
Capital assets 19,068,227 17,702,620 15,267,141 14,572,762 34,335,368 32,275,382
Total assets 22,690,498 21,865 357 - 15,978,153 15,381,875 18,668,651 37,247,232
" Deferred Outflow, Pension Plan 165,481 0 36,309 0 201,790
Long-term liabilities 11,654,117 . o 8,890,440 1,472,055 0 13,126,172 9,145,691
: Other liabilities 11,006,938 10,771,773 345,015 1,120,150 11,351,953 11,796,924
: Totat liabilities 22,661,055 19,622,213 1,817,070 1,120,150 24 478,125 . 20,782,363
Net position: ‘ ‘ ) .
Invested in capital assets net of (475,062) ~{1,500,068) 14,158,851 - 13,600,449 13,683,789 12,100,381
related debt ) _ _
Restricted 447,630 1,774,875 : 0 0 - 447,630 1,774,875
Unrestricted 222,356 1,928.336 38,540 661,276 260,896 - 2,589,612
" Total net position 19{,924_ 2,203,143 14,197 391 14,261,725 . 14,392,315 16,464 868
. Table 1l
City of ALTON
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Governmental ~ Governmental - Business-type = Business-type Total Total
- Activities _ Activities Activities Activities .
. 2015 2014 2015 - 2014 2013 2014
Revenues: : )
Program Revenues: C : : "
Charges for Services 301,196 289,323 2,550,401 2,461,597 2,851,597 2,750,920
Qgerating grants and cnntnbutmns 988,800 . 279415 0 0 988,800 279415
General Revenues: ) . :
Maintenance and operations. {axes 1,037,178 . 1,027,105 0 0 1,037,178 1,027,105
Debt service taxes 358,799 343,184 -0 0 358,799 343,184
Sales Taxes 731,039 - 652,660 . 0 0. - 731,039 652,660
Franchise Taxes 74,457 -269,719 0 0 271,199 269,719
Investment Eamings 5,269 2,137 0 0 5,269 2,137
Miscellangous 1,793,474 1,312,183 . 36,565 23,560 . 1,830, 039 1,335,743
- Total Revenue 5,486,954 4,175,726 2,586,966 2,485,157 . 8,073,920 6,660,883
Expenses: o -
General Governtnent 1,503,434 470,095 0 ¢ 1,503,434 470,095
Public Safety 2,529,243 2,243 449 0. [ 2,529,243 2,243,449
Public Works 687,956 758,607 0 4] 687,956 758,607
Health and Welfare 108,349 129,933 . 0. 0 108,349 129,933
Calture & Recreation 83,657 - 140,671 0 0 83,657 - 140,671
Economic Dcvchpment & Assi. 487,119 . 447,947 0. 0 487,119.° 447947 -
Debt Service . 296,644 220,845 0 0 296,644 220,845
Fiscal Agent’s Fees 250 230 0 0 250 250
Utility Fund Services 0 0 G o - 0 0
Solid Waste Fund Services 0 0 1,949,737 1,939,459 . 1,949,737 1,939,459
Utility 1&S Fund 0 -0 0 0 . 0. : 0
Total Expenses 5,696,652 4,411,197 1,949,737 1,939,459 T 7,646,389 . 6,351,256
Increase in het position before transfers ) .
and special items ‘ (209,698) (236,071) 637,229 545,698 . 427,531 309,627
Transfers 697,334 {2,992,907) (697 334) 2,937,907 ' 0 (55, 000)
Special Ifems — Resources : i - - ) - 0
Special Hems-Prior Period Ad_]ustments (2,495,854) 94,159 4, 229) ©. 3,605 (2,5G0,083) oy 764
Net position at 10/1/14 2,203,142 5,337,960 14,261,725 10,774,516 ‘16,464,867 16,112,476
Net position at 9/30/15 194,924 2,203,142 - 14,197,391 14,261,725 14392315 16,464,868



‘The cost of all governmental activities this year was $ 5.70 million. However, as shown in,
the Statement of Activities on pages 11 and 12, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately
financed for, these activitics through City taxes was only $1.4 million because some of the
~costs were paid by those' who directly benefited from the programs or by other governments
and organizations that subsrdtzed certain programs with grants and contributrons $1.29
thousand : :

: THE CITY'S FUNDS

As the City completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance sheet on
pages 13 reported a combined fund balance of $194 thousand, which is less than last year's total
of $2.2 million. “Included in this year's total change in fund balance is an increase of $470 2
thousand i in the City's General Fund. : -

Over the course of the year, the Board revised the City's budget several times. These budget
amendments fall into one category. They involved amendments moving funds from _programs
that did not need all the resources originally approprxated to programs with resource needs.

The City's General Fund balance of $218,261 thousand reported on page 13 differs from the

General Fund's budgetary fund balancé of ($608 thousand) reported in the General Fund -
budgetary comparlson scheduie on page 19. Thisi is. prmmpaliy due unrealized revenues.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capltal Assets :

At the end of the 2014-15 year, the City had $19.07 mrlhon invested in a broad range of capltal
assets, including facilities, land, mfrastmcture, vehlcles and equipment.

This years’ major addition included: ' '
. The continuation of the fire department buﬂdmg pro;ect utrhzmg proceeds from the
USDA loan & grant. : .

Debt

At year-end the City had $20.65 million in bonds and notes’ outstandmg, mereasmg by $.47

: mllhon from $20.18 million, due to new bond issues and notes.

.+ Other obligations 1nclude accrued vacatlon pay and sick leave. -More detailed information about
. the City's long-term liabilities is presented in the notes to the financial statements.



' ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City's elected and appomted ofﬂmals considered many factors when setting the fiscal- -year
" 2014-15 budget tax rates. One.of those factors is the economy, The City's population growth
* during 2000-2010 averaged annual gains of 181.5 percent. - More recently, unemployment has
remained relatively constant. This compares with the State's unemployment rate of 8.2 percent
and the national rate of 9.6 percent. The City also takes the number of households served by the
- City in developing the budget for the Enterprise fund. The City is currently serving 2,799
residents through its Enterprise fund, providing water, sewer and solid waste services.

These indicators were taken into account when_ adopting the Generel_Fund budget for 2015-16.

- Amounts available for appropriation in the General Fund budget are $4.194 million, lower than

the final 2014-15 budget of $ 3,747 million, due to the City’s establishing of an Enterprise Solid .
“Waste Fund. The City will use its revenues to finance programs we currently offer. Budgeted
expenditures are expected to relatwely increase to $4.16 million, also as a result of the Enterprlse ‘
Solid Waste Fund

If these. estimates are realized, the City's budgetary General Fund balance is expected to increase |
slightly by the close of 2015- 16. - :

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and
creditors with a general overview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for
the money it receives, If 'you have questions about this report or need additiona! financial
information, contact the Cltys adm1mstrat10n office, at. CITY OF ALTON, 519 S Main Blvd,,
ALTON, Texas,



EXHIBIT A-1

Total Net Position

CITY OF ALTON, TX
STATEMENTOFNETPOSITION -
_ SEPTEMBER 30,2015
: P_rima.q' Government’
"Business
Governmental Type :
. Activities Activities Total
ASSETS - : . : L
Cash and - Cash Equivalents 1734686 % . . 463,99 . 2,218,682
‘Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) L111,678 . 274,083 1,385,761
Internal Balances 110,130 (110,130 s
Restricted Assets: . ' .
Temp. Restrictied Asset (specify)- 645,777 83,063 . 728,840
Capital Assets: : o o
Land . 3,467,659 25,110 " 3,492,769
Infrastructure, net - - 8,556,968 - 8,556,968
" Buildings, net 3,993,359 o - 13,993,359
Improvements othér than Buildings, net - 5,668,675 5,668,673
Machinery and Equipment, net - 804,142 537,717 1,341,859
. Construction in Progress ©.2,246099 9,035,639 11,281,738
Total Assets 2,690,498 15,978,153 38,668,651
" DEFERREDOUTFLOW OF RESOURCES o .
~Deferred Outflow Related to Pension Plan 165,481 $ . 36309 - 201,790
- Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 165,481 36,309 . 201,790
+ LIABILITIES : ST _
' ‘Accounts Payable’ 282966 . 125479 408,445
* Intergovernmental Payable 48,801 7,548 - - 56,349
Unearned Revenues (3,375) o= (3,375}
Notes Payable - Current - 211,938 211,988
Noncurrent Liabilities _ :
Duye Within One Year ‘ 10,678,546 - . . 10,678,546
_ Due in More Than One Year . 8,978,858 - 1,472,055 10,450,913
Net Pension Liability 2,675,259 ~ 2,675,259
Total Liabilities 22,661,055 1,817,070 24,478,126
NETPOSITION o _ R
Net Investment in Capital Assets (475,062) 14,158,851 13,683,789 .
Restricted for: ' _ . '
Restricted for 14,395 - 14,395
Restricted for 433,235 - 433,235
. Unrestricted Net Position 222356 38,540 260,896
194924 14,392,315

The notes to-the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ . 14,197,391



~ CITYOFALTON,TX
- STATEMENTOF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2015

-Program Revenues

Charges for

Expenses Services

Primary Governmént: .

-~ GOVERNMENTALACTIVITIES: ) . ‘ _

. General Government o . ' S 1,503,434 $ 301,196
Public Safety _ ' 2,529,243 : : -
Public Works : ' _— 658,068 -
Highways and Streets C o ' 29,888 o -
Health and Welfare ' ‘ _ - . : 117,917 o -
Health : ; _ _ : _ (9,568) ‘ -
Cuiture and Recreation ' : - L : 83,657 .
Conservation and Development ' : . - 487,119 : -
Bond Interest o : - . ‘ o 131,415 S -
Other Debt Interest’ ' - ' : . 165,229 -
Fiscal Agent's Fees ’ _ . _ : _ 250 - _ -

‘Total Governmental Activities: I : o 3,696,652 C . 30L1%6

BUSINESS-TYPEACTIVITIES: " ' ' : ‘

: ‘1,114,218 1,211,442

_ . _ _ o 835,520 1,338,959

Total Business-Type- Activities: ' o o _ 1,949,738 : 2,550,40i
TOTALPRIMARY GOVERNMENT: - ' . _ o $ . 7646390 § 2,851,597

General Revenues:
Taxes:

Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes
Property Taxes, Levied for Debt Service
Sales Taxes ' o
Franchise Taxes -
Penalty and Interest _ _
Grants and Contributions Not Restricted :
. Miscellaneous Revenue i
Investment Earnings
- Special Item - resource
Special Item (Use) '
Transfers In {Out)

Total General Revenues, 'Special Items, and Transfers
" Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment
Net Position--Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,



EXHIBITB-1

‘Net (Expense)} Revenue and
Changes. in Net Position

Primary Govermnment

~ Governmental Business-type

Activities . Activities : _Toial
$ 7 (1,202,238) § -8 (1,202,238)
T (2,529,243) - (2,529,243)
(658,068) . - (658,068)
(29,888) _ . {29,888)
(117,917 . - S 17,917
9,568 - 9568
(83,657) - (83,657)
L (487,119) e (487,119)
(131,415) - - (131,415)
(165,229) - (165,229}
(250) . S : (230)
' (5,395,456) - (5,395,456)
.94 97204
503,439 503,439
. D 600,663 . 600,663
(5,395,456) 600,663 - (4,794,793)
1,037,178 T (AL
358,799 o - 358,799
- 731,039 L T3,039
271,199 _ - 271,199
74457 . S 74,457
988,800 . 988,800
1,719,017 7174 . 1,726,191
5,269 , S 5,269
_ 40,125 - 29,392 69,517
©(40,125) ' - (40,125y
697,334 (697,334) :
5,883,092 (660,768) . 5,222,324
- 487,636 (60,105) 427,531
2,203,142 14,261,725 16,464,867
| (2,495.854) © . (4,229) - (2,500,083)

¥ 194,924 % - 14,097,391 § 14,392,314

12



~ CITYOFALTON,TX

BALANCESHEET
GOVERNMENTALFUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2015
. Major -
General Special Capital
Fund ' Revenue Fund Projects
ASSETS S R _ :
Cash and Cash Equwalents _ _ . “ 8 42617 $ . 408908 g 195,160
Taxes Receivable . o 334722 D -
Receivables (Net) ‘ : - 5261 417,280 : -

“ Intergovernmental Recelvables o : 62,402 - : -
Due from Other Funds - 411911 - 103,320 70,057
Temporar:]y Rcsmcted Asset - TWDB ' . : - - 645,777
Total Assels . 4 . 8 1,326913 § 929508 $ . 910,994

LIABILITIES . )
Accounts Payable - . ' $ 0 43462 8 - % 1
Wages and Salaries Payable o - 76454 - -
Intergovernmental Payable - o _ U 48801 ' Co- L
Due to Other Funds - _ : 128258 . - 400,000 .
Due to Others . _ - ‘ I -
Unearned Revenues : : - - ) 642,421
" Total Liabilities ' - - . 296,975 400,000 642,422
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES i : . ‘
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes = - _ o 341504 0 e -
Total De'ferred Inflows of Resources . ) ‘ ' 341,504 - .
FUND BALANCES : :
- Capital Acquisiion and Contractural Obhgatmn _ : - ' - 268,572
Retirement of Long-Term Debt . - - -
Other Assigned Fund Balance ‘ - 529,508 _ .
Unassigned Fund Balance : . 688434 . . - _ -
Total Fund Balances ‘ ' _ . 688434 . 529,508 268,572
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances B 1326913 § 929,508 § 910,994

The notes to the financial statements are.an integral part of this statement,
' ‘ ' 13



Total

Capital Capital Other Governmental
Projects - Projects ~ Funds Funds

- 35,254 266,965 C 4457142 % 1,754,686
- - 123,948 458,670
- - 58,065 590,606
- - - 62,402
“ - 90,606 675,894
- - - 645,777
35,294 -266,965 718361 § - .4,188,035
12,985 124,611 5,823 $ 186,882
- - 3,806 80,260
. . . 48,801
. - 37,506 565,764
- - 15824 15,824
- - . - o 642421
12,985 . 124,611 - 62,959 1,539,952

. - 122,553 - 464,057

- - 122,553 464,057 |
22,309 142,354 - 433,235
- - 14,395 - 14395

- - 518454 1,047,962
- Do So- - 688434
22,309 142354 532,849 2,184,026

718361 %

266,965

4188035
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CITY OFALTON, TX
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDSBALANCE SHEETTOTHE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30,2015

EXHIBITC-2

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds . o : : $

The City uses internal service funds to charge the costs of certain activities, such as

~ self-insurance and printing, to appropriate functions in other governmental funds. The
assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental ‘
activities in thé statement of net assets, The net effect of thrs consolidation is to
Increase (decrease) net position. - :

Capital assets used in governmental acfivities are not financial resources and

- therefore are not reported in governmental funds. At the beginning of the ycar the

costof these assets was $34,235,546 and the accumulated depreciation was
$16,532,928; Tnaddition, long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, arenotdue and
payable in the current period, and, therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
The net effect of including the beginning balances for capital assets (net of -
depreciation) and long-term debt in the govemmental actmtles is to increase
(decrease) net position. :

' Current year caprtal out}ays and long-term debt principal payments are expendltures in
- the fund financial statements,but they should be shown as increases in capital assets
and reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. The
" neteffect of including the 2015 capital outlays and debt ptincipal payments is to
increase (decrease) net position. - o

' The 2015 deprec1at10n eXpense increases accumulated deprec1atlon The net effect
of the current yeat's depreciation is to decl ease net posrtron

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the
modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include
recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, ehmmatmg interfund transactions,

: reciasmfymg the proceeds of bond sales as an increase in bonds payable, and .
recognizing the liabilities associated with maturing Iong—term debtand interest. The
net effect of these reclassiti catrons and recogmtrons is to increase (dccrease) net
posrtlon

2,184,026

0

-~ (994,906)

13,121,206

(881,692)

(3233,710)

Net Position of Governmental Activities - _ ‘ _ - g

194,924

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
. _ . 5



CITY QFALTON,TX
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUNDBALANCE
GOVERNMENTALFUNDS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2015

. Majo__r ) )
General Special . Capital
_ Fund * RevenueFund- - Projects..
‘REVENUES;

Taxes: o i - : ‘
Property Taxes - o $ 1,054,233 § . .
General Sales and Use Taxcs : : ; 365,519 - : -
Franchise Tax . : E ) 271,199 - ] L.
Penalty and Interest on Taxes : } 53,799 .-

Licenses and Permits ) : - 210,519 - -

Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants s o - - - 62,757

Charges for Services ‘ : 279,658 - -

-Fines ‘ ) . 482,833 - -

Forfeits . - - - .

Special Assessments ) : : - R -

Investment Eamings : : ) 584 2,510 542

Rents and Royalties ' ' S _ : 21,538 - ‘

Contributions ‘& Donations from Private Sources : o . - - -

Other Revenue S : ) 257,778 o - -

- Total Revenves - . ' C o 2,997.660 - - 2,500 . " 63,299
EXPENDITURES - ' ‘ - ’ -
Current: ~ : : . Co ) :
- General Government ) o 0 : : : 1,134,973 ' BN -
Pubtic Safety - ) . 7 2,207,810 - -
" Public Works : : : - 550,866 - -

Health and Welfare . . 104,118 - - -

Culture and Recreation o : L ’ 30,372 o - .

Conservation and Development ) : . 79,608, ‘ : - -

Pebt Service: ‘ -
-'Bond Principal . ) Co . o o - -
* Other Debt Principal . . o ‘ : - - -

Bond Interest ) o o . - - -

Other Debt Interest . : - _ o - -

Fiscal Agent's Fees ‘ o - ‘ Co- - -

" Capital Outlay: o o -
Capital QOutlay o o - - 400,000 29,600
Total Expenditures : 4,107,747 400,000 29,600
Excess (Deficiency).of Revenues Over (Under) ) S, 110,087 - (397,450) . 33,699
Expenditures . o . .
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): ) . ] ] . o
_ Capital-refated Debt Issued (Regutar Bonds) o : : - - S 550,000

Sale of Real and Personal Propcrty . T 400,000 300,000 -

Transfers- In . C o S 526,288 . 400,000 ) 35,000

Other Resources . ) . - ) 653,971 - : -

Transfers Out (Use) - o ) . L : - (750,000)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - I - .. 71,580,259 - 700,000 235,000
SPECIAL ITEMS: ‘ 7 o :
~ Special Item - (Use) : S ’ . - - - ' (40,125)
Net Change in Fund Balances : ) i 470,172 ‘ 302,510 228,574
Fund Balance - October 1 (Beginning) : o 218,262 226,998 39,998 -
Fund Balance - September 30 (Ending) : % 688,434 . § 529,508 § 268,572

The notes to the financial statements are an integréﬂ part of this statement.



Total
Capital Capital " Other Governmental
" Projects Projects Funds Funds .
$ - 343,996 $ 1,398,229
5 - | 365,520 731,039
. . S 271,199
- - 20,658 74,457
- o - 210,519
- 570,921 337,252 © 970,930
. - 150,532 -430,190.
- . . 482,833
- - ©5,599 5,599
- - 123,757 123,757 .
725 252 - 656, 5,269
- 300 21,838
- . - 17,870 17,870
- . 28:000 22,899 308,677
725 599,173 1,389,039 5,052,406
- . . " 1,134,973
- - 13,716 2,221,526
R . - 550,866
. B} - 104,118
. . 39,541 69,913
- - 326,090 405,698
- - " 358,486 358,486
. . 458,678 458,678
- - 131,415 131,415
- - ' 165,229 165,229
. . 250 250
1,688,941 726,169 79997 2.924.707
" 1,688,941 726,169 1,573,402 " 8,525,859
(1,688,216) {126,996) (184,363) (3,473,453)
- - 950,000
. : ; - 700,000
280,000 300.000 489,334 2,030,622
- ST - 653,971
{(335,000) J- - (248,288) {1,333,288)
(55,000) 300,000 241,046 3,001,305
. o C. L (40,125)
(1,743,216) -173,004 56,683 (512,273)
1,765,525 ~(30,650) 476,166 2,696,299
$ 22,309 142,354 532,849 § 2,184,026
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EXH[BITC—4
CITY OF ALTON > -

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDSSTATEMENTOF REVE.NUES EXPENDITURES
ANDCHANGESINFUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2015

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds o N $ (5'12’273)

The city uses some internal service funds to charge the costs of certain activities L -0-
primarily to the governmental funds. The net income (loss) of these internal service * '

funds are reported with governmental activities. The net effect of this consohdatlon isto

mcrease (decrease) the change in net pOSIthﬂ

- Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures in 3113767
the fund financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets and
reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. The net effect
of removing the 2015 caplta.l outlays and debt principal payments istoincrease
- (decrease) the change in net position,

Depremation is not recognized as an expense in.governmental funds since it does not , (881,692)
require the use of current financial resources. The net effect of the current year s '
deprec:lat] onis to decrease the change in net position.

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the _ (1,232 166)
modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. Theseinclude
recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, adjusting current year revenue to show the
- revenue earned from the current year's tax levy, ¢liminating interfund transactions, -
reclassifying the proceeds ofbond sales, and recognizing the liabilities associated with
maturing Iong—term debt and interest. The net effect of these reclassifications and
recogmtlons is to increase (decrease) the change in net posmon

- Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities . g ' 487,636

The notes td the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
' 18



CITY OF ALTON,TX
SCHEDULE OF REVEN UES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES TNFUND BALANCE
BUDGET ANDACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

EXBIBITC-5

FOR THE YEARENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2015

Acfual Amounts

Variance With

Budgéted Amounts (GAAP BASIS) Final Budget
- . Positive or
Original” - Final (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes; _ o _
_P'roperty Taxes $ 0 1,027,088 $ 1,039,003 . % 1,054,233 % - 15,230
General Sales and Use Taxes 334,850 295,524 365,519 - 69,995
Franchise Tax - 260,000 260,000 - 271,199 11,199
Penalty and Interest on Taxes " 48,766 48,766 ;53,799 5,033
Licenses and Permits 156,400 188,483 . 2_}0,519 : 122,036
Charges for Services 306,493 207,686 279,658 (18 028)
. Fines 442,150 486,423 . 482,833 (3,590)
Investment Earnings 375 . 624 584 (40)
Rents and Royalties 25,900 19,744 - 21,538 1,794
Other Revenue - 209,335 © 257,310 © 257,718 468
“Total Revcnues : 2,81'1,'35_7 "2,893,563 2,997,660 104,097
EXPENDITURES:
Current: : )
"~ General Government 938,420 1,154,317 1,134,973 o 15,344
Public Safety - 1,950,743 2,025,910 2,207,810 (181,900)
- Public Works - 572,788 - 562,259 550,866 11,393
Health and Welfare 108,879 106,163 - 104,118 2,045
" Culture and Recreation . 44,300 31,927 30,372 1,555 -
Conservation and Development 98,639 92,994 79,608 13,386
Total Expenditures 3,713,769 3973570 4,107,747 - (134,177)
Exccss {Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) (902,412) (1,080,007) (1,116,087) - (30,080)
. Expenditures ; - - -
OTHERFINANCING SOURCES (USES): : . .
Sale of Real and Personal Property 430,_000 430,000 400,000 (30,000}
Transfers In 531,000 - 526,288 526,288 .
- Other Resources _ - 513,417 653,971 140,554 -
Total Other Fmancmg Sources (Uses) 961,000 ' 1,469,705 1,580,259 110,554
"Net Change : _ 58,588 - 389,698 470,172 80,474
Fund Balance - October 1 (Beginning) -218,262 218,262 218,262 -
Fund Balance - September 30 (Ending) 2‘76,850 '$ - 607,960 $ ' 688,434 § 80,474_

The notes to the financial statements are an integt’al part of this statement,



_ EXHIBITD-1
CITY OF ALTON, TX A
STATEMENTOFNETPOSITION

PROPRIETARYFUNDS

SEPTEMBER30 2015

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water & " Solid Total

Sewer Waste Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS o
Current Assets: - . '

Cash and Cash Equivalents - $ 208,402 $- 255,594 § 463,996

Restricted Assets - Current: . : : _ : o
Temporarily Restricted Asset - Escrow S 83,063 . 83,063

Accounts Receivable-Net of Uncollectible Allowance 157,253 116,830 274,083
Total Current Assets _ ' ) 448718 . ' 372,424 821,142

Noncurrent Assets: - ' '

Capital Assets: N : : . :
Land Purchase and Improvements . 25110 . © 25110
Improvements other than Buildings : © 7,819,749 k - 7,819,749

Accumulated Deprec}atl on - Othcr Improvements (2,151,074) “ (2,151,074)
Machinety and Equipment ' 2,081 949,735 951,816
Accumulated Depreciation - Machmery & Equment - (414,099) (414,099) -
" Construction in Progress . 5,035,639 - 9,035,639
Total Noncurrent Assets . . 14,731,505 ~ 535,636 15,267,141
Total Assets -~ : 15,180,223 908,060 . 16,088,283
DEFERREDOUTFLOWSOF R.ESOURCES ' : -
Deferred Qutflow Related to Pension Plan 17,981 18,328 . 36,309
" Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 17,981 18328 36,309
LIABILITIES ' '
" Current Liabilities: . ‘ o
"Accounts Payable . - - 7,281 90,956 " 08,237
Wages and Salaries Payable : L 17,261 9981 027,242
" Intergovernmenta}- Payabie ' - o 1,548 7,548

Due to Other Funds o : . 103,320 - 6,810 110,130 .

Notes Payable - Current , : o 28,917 - 183,071 211,988

- Total Current Liabilities _ 156,779 298,366 455,145

NonCurrent Liabilities: ‘ ' ' ‘

Bonds Payable - Non-Current; o

Revenue Bonds Payabie o 285,000 - 285,000
_* Notes Payable - Noncurrent . - . o 120,361 . 490,940 611,301

Other Noncurrent Liabilities o 285121 290,633 - 575,754

Total Noncurrent Liabilities . a 690,482 781,573 1,472,055
Total Liabilitics S 847261 1079939 1,927,200

NET POSITION | : ' - :
Net Investment in Capital Assets : - o 14,297,227 - (138,375) 14,158,851
Unrestricted Net Position o 53,716 (15,176) . 38,540
Total Net Position _ $ 143509438 (153,551) § 14,197,391

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF ALTON, TX o
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, ANDXCHANGES INFUNDNET POSITION
PROPRIETARYFUNDS
I ORTHEYEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2015

Business- 'iype Activities - Enlerpnsc Funds

Solid

-Water & Toial .
Sewer Waste Enterprise
 Fund Fund . Funds
OPERATTNGREVENUES : T
Charges for Services b _ - % 1,212,810 § 1,212,810
Charges for Sewerage Service 1,211,442 - 126,149 1,337,591
" Investment Earnings 367 191 558
Confributions & Donatlons from Prlvate Source - 300 300
Other Revenue ) - 6316 6,316
Total Operati_ng Revenues - 1,211,809 1,345,766 2,557,575
 OPERATINGEXPENSES: , .
Personnel Services - Salarfes and Wages 236,609 166008 . 402,017
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 51862 434 93.186
Purchased. Professional & Technical Servwes 12720 78,359 . 91,079
- Purchased Property Services L 65,588 65,588
Other Operating Expenses 609,054 274,288 _ 8’83,342 :
Supplies 73 49898 50,719
Depreciation 183,807 144,097 © 327904
Interest Expense - 19946 15,958 35,904
" Total Operating Expenses ) -1,114,218 . 835,520 1,949,738
- Income:Before Contributions & Transfers . 97,591 510246 607,837
.Cé.pital_Contributioné ' ' _29,393 -. : - 29393
Non-Operating Transfer In 35000 - - 35000
Transfers Out _ . (408,334) (324,000} (732,334)
_ Change in Net Position -(246,350) , 186,246 - (60,105)
Total Net Position - October 1 (Begmmng) 14,325,666 (63,941) _ 14,261,725
_ Prior Period Adjustment _ 271,627 (275,856) (4,229) -
~Total Net Position - September 30 (Ending) _$ 14,350,943 $  .(153,3551) % 14197391

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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" CITY OF ALTON, TX

. _ STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEARENDED SEPTEMBER 30,20 i5

Business-Type  Activities

Water & Solid . Total
Sewer - . Waste ~ Enterprise
 Fund Fund " Funds
Cash Flows from Operating Activities: .
Cash Received from User Charges $ 1,148,551 1,304,649  § 2,453,200 -
_ Cash Payments to Empioyees for Services ' (280,714} (205,219) (485,933)
Cash Payments for Suppliers S (392,758}, - (217,679) . (610,437)
Cash Payments for Other Operating Expenses T (19,946) {208,174) " (228,120)
Net Cash Provided by Operatin : . .
Ativition PO , 455,133 673,577 1,128,710
Cash Flows from Non-Capltal Financing Actmt:es o :
' Operating Transfer Out ! . ' - {408,334) (324,000) (732,334)
" Cash Flows from Capital & Related Financing Actlwues ' ' o
Acquisition of Capital Assets : . (641,623) (380,618) (1,022,241)
Capital Contributed by Other Funds ‘ 29,393 - 29,393
Debt Service Payments _ ' (29,7113) (168,427) (198,140)
.. Prior Period Adjustment : ' 270,436 (275,702) (5,266)
- Net Cash Provided by {Used for) Capital & ' _ o
Related Financing Activities . - (371,507) (824,747) (1,196,254
Cash Flb\;vs from Investing Activities: . ' - : '
Purchase of Investment Securities - 334,311 334,311
Net Pension Liability : : 303,102 272,305 575,407
Net Cash Provided by Investing : '
Activities. | _ o 303,102 606,616 - 909,718
Net Increase(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  (21,606) 131,446 o 109,840
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year: = - 313,071 124,148 437,219
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year: . $ 291465 § . 255504 § = 547,059
Recoriciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash o
"Provided By Operating Actlvatles _ o .
Operating Income: - 8 97,591 510,246 % 607,837
- Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Incomc ‘ : '
to Net Cash Provided by Operatmg Activities: ' : .
Depreciation . . 183,807 144,097 327,904
Effect of Increases and Decreases in Current ' '
Assets and Liabilities: _ )
Decrease (mcrease) in Receivables . 63,258 41,117 104,375
Increase (decrease) in Accounts Payable o 2776 (24,242) (21,466)
Increase (decrease) in Payroll Deductions 4,381 2,113 6,494
- Increase (decrease) in Due to Other Funds : 103320 246 103,566
Net Cash Provided by Operating ' ' _ _ :
Activities $- 455,133 673,577 § 1,128710

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBITE-1

CITY OF ALTON, TX
STATEMENT OF NETPOSITION
. FIDUCIARYFUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2015
Agency
Fund
~ ASSETS _ S S _ .
Cash and Cash Equivalents. AR _ S % 2,319
Accounts Receivable-Net of Uncollectible Allowance - ' o 3,683
Total Assets ‘ _ - o R 6,002 -
NETPOSITION _ S ‘ o Co :
.Réétrictc_d for Employee Benefits. - . : i ' $ S 6,002_

Total Net Posifion

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ALTON
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
'YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CITY OF ALTON (the "City") was incorporated on. April 1, 1978, under Article X, Section 5 of the
Constitution of the State of Texas. The City operates under a Home Rule (Mayor, City Commissioners)
form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter. The services include
public safety (police and fire), public- works, sanitation, health and: social services, culture-recreation,
public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services, Other services include
‘utilities (water & sewer services and solid waste collection), '

The City prepares its basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and other authoritative sources identified
in Statement on Auditing Standards No. 56 of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountaiits and
the requirements of contracts and grants of agencies from which it receives funds. :

New 4 ccoummg Standards Adopted

In fiscal year 2015, the City adopted five new statements of financial accounting standards 1ssued by the
Governmental Accountmg Standards Board

« Statement No, 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25

* Statement No, 68 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASR Slatement
No. 27

+ Statement No.69, Governmen! Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations

« Statement No.70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees

« Statement No.71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an
~ amendment of GASB Statement No 68

: Statement No. 67 establishes ﬁnanc1al reportmg standards, but not funding or budgetary standards for state
and local government defined benefit pension plans and defined contribution pension plans that are
administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements {(Pension Trusts) in which;

1. Contributions. from employers and nonemployer contributing entities to the pension p!an and eammgs on
those contributions are 1rrevocable .

2. Pensmn plan dssets are dedicated to providing penswns to plan membcrs in accordance with the beneﬁt
terms. .

3. Pension plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, nonemployér contributing
entities, and the pension plan administrator, If the plan is a defined benefit penswn plan, plan assets also are
legally protected from credltors of the plan members,

For defined benef t pension plans, this Statcment establkshcs standards of ﬁnanmal reporting for separately
issued

financial reports and presentatmn as pension trust funds in the financial statements of another government,
and specifies the required approach to measuring the pension liability of employcrs and any nonemployer
contributing entities for benefits provided through the pension plan (the net pensmn hablhty), about which
certain information is requlred to be presented.

Distinctions are madc regarding the particular presentation requircménts.depending upon the type pension

plan administered. For defined contribution' plans, the Statement provides specific note disclosure
requirements. The adoption of Statement No. 67 has no impact on the City's financial statements.
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Statement No. 68 establishes standards of accounting and financial reporting, but not funding or budgetary.
standards, for defined benefit pensions and defined contribution pensions provided to the employees of
state and local government empldyers through pension plans that are administered through trusts or
equivalent afrangements criteria detailed above in the description of Statement No 67.This Statement
replaces the requnement of Statement ‘

- No. 27, Accounling for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, as well as the requireﬁents
of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are’ provided thmugh ‘pension
plans within the scope of the Statement. - -

The requirements of Statement No. 68 apply to the financial statements of all state and local governmental -
employers whose employees are provided with' pensions through pension plans that are adiministered
though trusts or equivalent arrangements as described above, and to the financial statements of state and -
local governmental nonemployer contributing entities that have a legal obligation to make contributions -
directly to such pension plans.” This Statement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing
Tiabilities, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred. inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures
related to pensmns Note disclosure and RS requirements about pensions also are addressed. For defined
benefit pension plans, this Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to project.
benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments 10 their actuarlal present value, and attribute that
' present value to periods of employee service. ' : :

The adoption of Statement No. 68 has no impact on the City’s governmental fund financial statéments,
which contihue to report expenditures in the contribition amount determined legislatively for the TRS plan.
The calculation of pension contributions is unaffected by the change. However, the adoption has resulted in
the restatement of the City's beginning net position of the government-wide financial statements to reflect
the reporting of its proportionate shares of the collective (TRS) pens:ora expense, collective (TRS) deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and a net pension hablhty for its
qualified pension plan and the recognition of pension expense in accordance with the provisions of the
Statement. ‘The Statement requires numerous new pension disclosures in the notes to the financial
* statements and two new 10-year, pension related charts as required supplementary information. . - '

_Statement No. 69 improves financial reporting by addressing accounting and financial reporting for
government combinations and disposals of governnient operations. The term "government combinations" is ~
used to refer to a variety of arrangements including mergers and acquisitions. . Mergers include
combinations . of legaily separate entities without the exchange of significant consideration.  Goyernment
acquisitions are transactions-in which a government acquires another entity, or its operations, in exchange
for significant consideration. Goveriment combinations also include transfers of operations that do not
. constitute entire legally separate entities in which no significant consideration is exchanged. Transfers of
operations may be present in shared service arrangements, reorganizations, redistricting, -annexations, and
arrangements in which an operation is transferred to a new government created to provide those services.

There was no impact on the City's financial statements as a result of the iinpiementation of Statement No.
69. Statement No. 70 was -issued to improve accountmg and financial reportmg by state and local
governments that extend and receive nonexchange ﬁnanc:al gua1 antees.

~ The Statement requires a government that extends a nonexehange- financial guarantee to .recognize a

- liability when qualitative factors and historical data -indicate that it is more likely than not that the
- government will be required fo make a payment on the guarantee. The Statement requires a government
that has issued an obligation guaranieed in a nonexchange transaction to recognize revenue to the extent of
the reduction in its guaranteed liabilities. The Statement requires a government that is required to repay a
guaranfor for making a payment on a guaranteed obligation or legally assuming the guaranteed obligation
te continue to recognize a-liability until legally released as an obligor. When a government is released as an
obligor, the gevemment should lecogmze revenue as a result of bemg relieved of the obligation:- This
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Statement also provides additional guldance for intra-entity nonexchange ﬁnanc;al guarantees mvolvmg
biendeci component units.

Therc Was.no lmpact on the City's financial statements as a result of the implementation of Statement No.
70. Statement No. 71 amends Statement No. 68 to require that, at transition, a government recognize a
beginning deferred outflow of resources for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the
measurement date of the beginning net pension liability. Since the measurement date of the pension plan
‘was different than the City's fiscal year-end, the effect from the City's reported contributions to the plan
subsequent to the respective measurement date of the plan as an increase in deferred outflow of resources.

Pensions. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources-and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Net Position
-of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions to/deductions from TMRS’s Fiduciary’
Net Position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS, For this purposg, plan
contributions are recognized in the period that compensation Is reported for the employee, which is when
contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in

accordance with the beneﬁt terms. Investments are rcported at fair value.

A REPORTING ENTITY ' ' '
" The Board of Commissioners (the "Board") is elected by the pubhc and it has the authority to make
decisions, appoint administrators and managers, and mgmﬁcantly influence operations. It also has the.
. primary accountability for fiscal matters, Therefore, the City is a financial réporting entity as defined by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") in-its Statement No. 14, "The Financial
Reporting E‘.ntlty " : . S

In evaluatmg how to define ‘the Clty for financial reporting purposes, management has consudered all
potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the 1eportmg entity was
made by applying the criteria set forth in Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The basic~
but not the only-criterion for including.a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the
governing body's ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most s;gmﬁcant manifestation of this
ability is financial mterdependency Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility -
include, but are not limited to, the sélection of governing authority, the desxgnation of management, the
ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters, A second criterion used
.in evaluating potential component units is the scope of public service. Application of this criterion involves .
considering ‘whether the activity benefits the government and/or its. citizens, whether the activity is
conducted within the geographic boundaries of the government and is generally available to-its citizens. A
+ third criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion is the existence of
special financing relationships, regardless of whether the government is able to exercise oversight
" responsibilities, Based upon the application of the above criterig, the fol]owmg is a brief review of the
City's component unit addr essed in defining the Clty s reporting entity..

'Blended Component Units — Blended component units, although Eegally éeporate entities, are in substance
part of the government’s operations and so data fiom these units are combined with data of the primary
govemment The Cfty 5 b!ended component unit follows ‘

Included in the Reporting Entlty :

. The City of Alton Development Corporation (4A Corporation) and’ the City of Alton Community
Development Corporation (48 .Corporation) were incorporated on July 9, 1996, under the Development
Corporation Act of 1979, -of the State of Texas. The Development Corporations (4A & 4B) operate as
Component Units of the City of Alton, Texas (the “City™). The Corporations’ purpose are to promote

- economic development and encourage employment and public welfare on behalf of the City by developing,
implementing, providing and financing projects under the Act as defined in Sections 4A and 4B of the:Act. .
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B.  GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities are government-wide financial statements.
They report information on all of the CITY OF ALTON nonfiduciary activities with most of the interfund
activities removed. Govermmental activities include programs supported primarily by taxes, State funds,
grants and other intergovernmental revenues., Business-type actavmes include operationis that rely to a
Sigmﬁcant extent-on fees and charges for support. :

The Statement of Actwltxes demonstrates how other people or entities that part:c1pate in programs the City
operates have shared in the payment of the direct costs. ‘The "charges for services” column includes
payments made by parties that purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given
function or segment of the City. The "grants and contributions" column includes amounts paid by

organizations outside the City to help meet the operational or capital requiréments of a given function, Ifa

revenue is not a program revenue, it is a general revenue used to support all of the City's functlons Taxes

are always general revenues. :
Tnterfund activities between governmental funds and between governmental funds and ploprletary funds

appear as due to/due froms on the Governniental Fund Balance Sheet and Proprietary Fund Statement of
Net Assets and as other resources and other uses on' the governmental fund Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance and on the Proprietary Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses

and Changes in Fund Net Assets. All interfund transactions between governmental funds are eliminated on

the government-wide statements, Interfund activities between governmental funds and entefprise funds

remain on the government-wide statements and appear on the government-wide Statement of Net Assets as

internal balances and on the Statement of Activities as interfund transfers. Interfund activities between
governmental funds and ﬁducaary funds remam as due to/due froms on the government-wide Statement of -
Activities, :

~ The fund financial statements provide reports on the financial condition and results of operations for three

_ fund categories - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Since the resources in the fi duciary funds
cannot be used for City operations, they are not included in the government-wide statements. The City .
considers same governmental and enterprise funds major and reporis théir financial condition and results of
operations in a separate column. : S

Proprietary. funds distinguish operati'ng reventies and e){p'enses from nonoperating items. "Operating -

. revenues result from providing goods and services in ‘connection with a proprietary fund's principal

ongoing operations; they usually come from exchange or exchange-like transactions. - All other revenues
. _are nonoperating. Operating expenses can be tied specifically to the production of the goods and serwces,
such as materials and labor and direct overhead. Other expenses are nonoperatmg

Cc MEASUREMENT FOCUS BASIS OF ACCOUNTING ANDF INANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESEN TATION

~ The government-w:c_ie financial statements use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual -

- basis of accounting, as do the proprietary fund. and fiduciary fund financial statements, Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are récorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the .
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues it the year for which they are levied. Grants
and similar items are recogmzed as revenue as soon as all eligibility requlrements imposed by the prowdes
have been met. . : P

Governmental fund financial statements use the current financial resources measurement focus and the

) modlﬁcd accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, only current assets, current liabilities
and fund balances are included on the. balance sheet,  Operating statements of these funds. present net -
.increases and decreases in current assets (E e., revenues and othm ﬁnancmg sources and expendltures and
other financing uses) :
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The modified accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they
become both measurable and available; and it recognizes expend:tures in the accounting period in which .
the fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except for un-matured interest and principal on long-term debt,
which is recognized when due. The expenditures related to certain compensated absences and claims and
judgments are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated. with expendable available

financial resources. The City considers all revenues avallabie af they are collec’ubie within. 60 days after
year end.

Revenues from. local sources consist primarily of property taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues .
received from the State are recognized under the "susceptible to accrual® concept, that is, when they are
both measurable and available. The City considers them "available” if they will be collected within 60 days
of the end of the fiscal year. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash
because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as
earned, since they are both measurable and available. '

Grant funds are considered to be earned to the extent of expenditures made under the provisions of the -
_ grant. Accordingly, when such funds are received, they are recorded as deferred revenues until related and
authorized expenditures have been made. If balances have not been expended by the end of the project
period grantors some times require the City to refund all or part of the unused amoimt

The Proprletary Fund Types and Fiduc:ary Funds are accounted for on a ﬂow of economic resources
- measurement focus and utilize the accrual basis of accounting, This basis of accounting recognizes -
revenues in the accounting period in which they, are earned and become measurable and expenses in the
accounting period in which they are incurred and become measurable. The City applies all GASB.

- pronouncements as well as the Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued on or before .

November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements conflict or contradict GASB pronouncements, - With this
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on
the fund statement of Net Assets. The fund equity is segregated mto invested in capltaI assets net of related
debt, restricted net assets, and unr estrlcted net assets, : :

D, FUND'ACCOUNTIN G
The City reports the following major governmental funds:

1. . The General Fund — The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. Tt accounts for
" all financial resources except those requlred to be accounted for in another fund

2. Special Revenue Fuads — The Clty accounts for resources restricted to, or des:gnated for,
specific purposes by the City or a grantor in a special revenue fund. Most Federal and some
State financial assistance.is accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund, and sometimes unused
_balances must be returnied to the grantor at the close of specified project periods.
3. Capital.'Px.'ojects Funds — The proceeds from long-term debt financing and revenues and
expenditures related to authorized construction and other cap:tal asset acquisitions are
. accnunted forina eapltal prolccts fund
The City reports the following major enterprise fund(s):.

1. The Utility Fund - The utility fund is used to account for all financial resources der wed from
. prowdmg basic services such as water, sewer serv:ces and solid waste services.

Aéditionally, the City reports the foElowmg fund type(s):

-Governmental Funds:
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Special Revenue Funds — The City accounts. for resources festricted to, or designated for,

L
specific purposes by the City or a grantor in a special revenue fund, Most Federal and some
State financial assistance is accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund, and sometimes unused
balances must be returned to the grantor at the close of specified project per:ods

2. The Debt Service Fund — The debt service fund is used to aceount for the accumulatlon of
résources for and payment of, general long term debt principal, interest, and reiated costs.
Capital Pr o;ects Funds ~ The proceeds. flom long-term debt financing and revenues and .
expenditures related to authorized construction and other capltal asset. acquisitions are
accounted for ina capltai pI‘O_]eCtS fund ‘

Proptietary Funds:

4. Enterprise Funds — The City's activities for which outside users are charged a fee roughly

.equal to the cost of prowdmg the goods or services of those activities are accounted for in an -
enterprise fund. ' ‘

OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. -

For purposes of the statement of cash flows for proprietary funds, the Clty considers highly
liquid investments to be cash eqmvalcnts if they have a matur:ty of three months or less when
purchased. - : . _ .

Tn _the goyefnment-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund iypés in the fund financial
- statements, fong-term debt and other long-term obfigations are. reported as liabilities in the
“applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement

of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs; are deferred and

. amortized over the life of the bonds usmg the effective interest method. Bonds payable are

reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount,  Bond issuance costs are reported as

" defefred charges and amor tlZCd over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund ty_pes recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt

issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
" reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuanceé costs, whether or not withheld from the actuaE debt proceeds :
- received, dare repo: ted as clebt service expenditures.

It is the City's policy to permit some employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and
sick pay benefits. There is a liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the City does
have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from service with the City,” All
vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary.
fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds

o only if they have matured, for example, asa result of employee res1gnat10ns and retlrements

-Capital assets, wh:ch include. land, bulldmgs, furmiure and equipment [and’ infrastructure

assets], ate reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the

government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an
initial, individual cost of more than $500 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.
Such ‘assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Ponated capltaE assets are rccordeci at estimated fair market value at the date of -
donatlon '

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.. Major outlays for capttai assets and

‘improvements are capitalized as p1 OJects are constl ucted.
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Buildings, furniture and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight line method

“over the following estimated useful lives. The estimated lives rage from 5 to 7 years for

equipment, 45 years for i improvements, and 40 years for buikdings.

Restricted _Assets~Certam procecds of enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain

. resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet

because their use is limited by'applicable bond covenants.

: Dcfcrl ecl revenues are those for which- asset recogmtmn crlterla have been met, but for which

revenue recogmtmn criteria have not been met, Monies collected in advance from federal or
state agencies are recorded as revenue in the year for which the expenditures are incwrred.

© When the City incurs an expense for which it may use either restricted or unrestricted assets, it
. uses the restricted assets first whenever they will have to-be returned if they are not used.

Encumbrances-The City of Alton, Texas, employs encumbrance accounting; under ~ which
purchase order, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded

-in order to reserve that portion of the apphcable appropriation,

The City has.adopted GASB 54 as part of its fiscal year reporting, The intention of GASB 54
is to provide a more structured classification of fund balance and to-improve the usefulness of
fund balance reporting to the users of the. City’s financial statements. The reporting standard
establishes a hierarchy- for fund balance classifications and the constraints imposed on the
uses of those resources, GASB 54 provides for two major types of fund balances, which are
nonspendable and spendable.

Nonspendable fund balances are balances that cannot be spent because. they are not expected
to be converted to cash or they are legally or contractually required to remain intact.
Examples of these classifications are prepaid items and inventories.

In addition to the nonspendable fund balance, GASB 54 has provided a hierarchy of
spendable fund balances, based on hierarchy of spending constraints,
¢ Restricted: fund balances that are constrained by external parties, cons‘ututmnal
© provisions, or'‘enabling legislation.
¢ ' Committed: fund - balances that contain self—lmposed constraints of the
' government form its highest level . of -decision making authority. The
. responsibility to commit funds rests with the City Commissioners. Committed
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the governing board
removes those constraints by taking the same type of formal action.
* " Assigned: fund balances thal contain self- 1mposed constramts of the government
: 1o be used for a particular purpose. :
¢  Unassigned: . fund balance of the general fund that is not constramed for any
particular purpose. - :
When the City incurs an expense for which it may use cither restricted or unrestricted assets, it

. used the restricted assets first whenever they will have to be returned if they are not used. -

II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVE_RNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Al

EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND BALANCE SHEET AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET '
"~ ASSETS
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Exhibit C-2 provides the reconciliation between the ‘fund balance for total governmental funds on the .
governmental- fund balance sheet and the nef assets for governmental activities as reported in the

government-wide statement of nef assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that capital assets are

not financial resources and are therefore not reported in governmental funds. In .addition, long-term

liabilities, including bonds payable, are not-due and payable in the current period and are nol reported as

liabilitiesin the funds The details of capital assets and long-term debt at the begmmng of the year were as

follows:

Capital Assets . . '_ - Accumulated - Net Value at the Change in Net

at the Beginning of the year =~ Historic Cost Depreciation Beginning of the - *Assets
fe oo ’ Year - . .
Land :  $3,467,659 : 0 $3,467,059 -
Buildings . © 5,753,663 - (1,636,063) . - 4,117,600
Furniture & Equipment 2,574,921 - (1,885,719 72,389,202
Construction In Progiess 899,849 N ) B 899,849
Infrastructure. 21,539,452 (13,011,145) 8,528,307
‘Change in Net Assets - EEE $ 19,402,617
Long-term Liabilities S L L Payable at the
at the Beginning of the vear ' : - Beginning of the
o S ‘ S - Year .
 Bonds Payable R e L 7,236,000
. Less Deferred Charges e ‘
-Loans Payable S ' 11.966.689 -~ -
Change in Net Assets - S , S (19.202.689)
_NetAdjuStmeﬁt 1o Net Assets S - . . $199.979 o
- B.. - EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL

~ FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES AND THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Exhxblt C- 4 prov:cles the reconc:llatmn between the net changes in fund balance as shown on the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and. the changes in
net assets of governmental activities as reported on the government-wide statement of activities. One
" element of that reconciliation explains that current year capital outlays and debt principal payments are
expenditures in the fund financial statements, but should be shown as-increases in capital assets and
. decreases in long-term debt in the government-wide statements. This adjustment affects both the net asset
balance and the change in net assets, The details of this adjustment are as follows:

. Adjustments fo Adjustments to

Amount Changes in Net Net Agsets -
: ' o . ' Assets : '
Current Year Capital Outlay ) o - .
“Various Categories - $2.270.698 : o g
. Total Capital Outlay $2.270.698 $2.270,698 $2.270,698
" Debt Principal Payments B
" Bond Principal’ 358,486
Loan Principal : 268.678 .
Total Principal ~ $652.126 : 652,126 . 652,126
Payments . . ) ) :
"Totdl Adjustment to Net Assets - $2.922.824 $2,922.824
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Another element of the reconciliation on Exhibit C-4 is described as various other reclassifications and
eliminations necessary to convert from the modified accrual basis of accounting to. accrual bame of
accounting, This adjustment is the result of several 1tems The details for this element are as follows:

Amount " Adjustments to  Adjustments
Change in Net (o Net Assets
) : Assets ' :
Adiustments to Revenue and Deferred Revenue : S
Taxes Collected from Prior Year Levies - $150,361 $(150,361)
Uncollected taxes(assumed collectible) from Current Year 148,109 . 148,109 148,109
Levy ' : ' L :
Uncollected taxes(assumed collectible) from Prior Year 315,48 . 315,948
Levy
Reclassify Proceeds of Bonds, Loans & Cepltal Leases ‘ : : o
" Bond/Note Issuance 1,163,107, - (1,163,107) - {1,163,107)
Sale of Property ' C 23,396 23,396 23,396
Prior Period Adjustments ’ 2,467,853 : (2,467,853)
Other ' ‘ ’ o ’ (90,203) (90,203)

Total : B - $01,232.166) $(3.233,710)

111 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE., AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A, BUDGETARY DATA ‘ - _ _
~The Board of Commissioners adopts an "appropriated budget" for the General Fund and Debt Service
Fund. In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement#34, a City is.
required to present the adopted and final amended budgeted revenues and expenditures for the General
Fund. The City compares the final amended budget to actual revenues and expendltures The General
Fund Budget report appears in Exhibit C-5, '

The foilowmg procedures are followed in estabhshmg the budgetary data reﬂected in the generai -purpose
financial statements: : :

1. Prior to October 1, the City prepares-a budget for the next. succeedmg fiscal year begmnmg
" October 1, The operating budget includes- proposed expendtturcs and the means of financing
them

2. A meetmg of the Board is then called for the purpose of adoptmg the proposed budget At _
least ten days' public notice of the meeting muist be given.

. 3. Prior to October I, the budget is legaliy enacted through passage of an ordinance by the

- Board. Once a budget is approved, it can only be.formally amended by approval of a majority

| of the members of the Board. Amendments are presented to the Board at its regular meetings.

Each amendment must have Board approval. As required by law, such amendments are made
before the fact, and are reflected in the official minutes of the Board, and are not made after -

fiscal year-end. Because the City has a policy of careful budgetary control, several
amendments were necessary durmg the year. However, none of these were deemed’

significant. o :

4. Budgeted _amounts are as amended by the Board. All budget apprepriations lapse at year eﬁd._ '

'B.. - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS
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" General Fund expenditures exceeded appropriatibns by the amount(s) noted below;

‘Functional Category ' ' - Amount
Public Safety - - ' . $181.900

Total Excess of Expenditures - . $181.900

IV DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The funds of the City must be deposited and invested under the terms of contract, contents of which are
set out:in the Depository Contract Law. The depository bank places approved pledged securities for
safekeeping and trust with the City's agent bank in an amount sufficient to protect City funds on a day-to-
day basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is waived only to the extent
of the depository bank's dollar amount of Federal Deposxt Insurance Corporation ("FDIC’) insurance.

At Septemb_er 30, 2015; the carrying am_ount_ of the City's _deposﬂ:s (cash, certificates of dep031t, and
interest-bearing savings accounts included in témporary investments) was $2,218,682 and the bank balance
was $2,324,620. The City's cash deposits at September 30, 2015 and during the year ended Septembel 30,
2015 were entirely covered by FDIC Insurance and securities collateral,

The Pubhc Funds Investment Act (Government_ Code Chapter 2256) contains specific prov1310ns in the
~ areas of investment practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate policies. Among other
things, it requires the City to adopt, implement, and publicize an investment policy. . That policy- must
~ address the following areas: (1) safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) allowable
investments, (4) acceptable risk levels, (5) expected rates of return; {6) maximum allowable stated maturity 4
of portfolio investments, (7) maximum. average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the stated
maturity date for.the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and capabilities, (9) and bid solicitation
-preferences for certificates of deposit. Statutes authorize the City to invest in (1) obligations of the U.S.
Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas; (2) certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal
securities, (4) money market savings accounts, (5) repurchase agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, (7)
‘Mutual Funds, (8) Investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts, (10) and common trust funds.
The Act also requires the City to have mdependent auditors perform test procedures related to investment

practices as provided by the Act.. The City is in substanttai compliance with the requuements of the Act
and w1th local policies.

Credit Risk To limit the risk ‘that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
‘obligations the City limits investments to Certificates of Deposits, Public Funds Investment Pools and
Guaranteed Investment Contracts, collateralized by U.S. Government Securities. - As of September 30,
- 2014, the city's mvestments were secured by FDIC Insurance and securitses collateral.

Custodial Credit Risk for Investmems State law requires governmental entities to confract with financial

institutions in which funds will be deposited to secure those deposits with insurance or pledged securities

‘with a fair value equaling of exceeding the amount on deposit at the end of each business day. The pledged

_securities must be in the name of the governmental entity and held by the entity or its agent. Smce the city
_complies with this law, it has no custodial credit nsk for deposits. ' :

Concentration of Credi; Risk To limit the risk of loss aftr ibuted to the magnitude of a goverhment'
investment in a. single issuer, the investment porifolio shall be dlvers;ﬁed in tefms of -investment
instruments maturity scheduling, and ﬁnanc:al institutions.

 Inferest Rate Risk To limit the risk that changes in inferest rates w;ll adverseEy affect the fau value of
investments, the City requires that the investments shall be monitor ed by using speciﬁc identification.

33



Foreign Currency Risk for Investments The District limits the risk that changes in exchanges rates will
adversely affect the fair vaEue of an mvestment At year-end, the District was not exposed to foreign
currency risk. ' ' '

B, PROPERTY TAXES :

Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed s of the prior January 1 for ail real and
business. personal property located in the City in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code.
Taxes are due on recelpt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February lof the year
following the year in which imposed. On January 31st of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to
secure the payment of all taxes, penaities, and interest ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are.
considered available (1) when they become due or past due and receivable within the current period and (2)
when they are expected to be collected during a 60-day period afier the close of the school fiscal year.

C. - DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE

Delinquent taxes are prorated between maintenance and debt service based on rates adopted. for the year of

- the levy Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General and Debt Service Funds are based

" on historical experience in collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically
reviewed and written off, but the City is prohibited from writing off real property taxes wathout specific
statutory authority from the Texas Leglskaturc .

D. INTERFUND BALANCES

General Fund Due to

Urban County o (2,141

Debt Service 4,360

" Capital Projects 126,039

: ' 128,258

Special Revenue Fund Due to:

General Fund - : 405.101 .

© 405,101

Debt Service Fund Due to: . '

- TIRZ Fund- R 32.405

o o 32,405

"Enterprise Fund Due to:.
General Fund

TX Leverage Fund 103,320
: o 103,320
‘Total Due To: - 675,804
General Fund Due From: - : o
Special Revenue Fund 405,101
Enterprise Fund =~ 6,810
: ' 411,911
Urban County Due From: '
. General Fund ' (2,141)
: (2,141)
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fTI'RZ. Due From: o :
Genera] Fund - o 55,982

Debt Sérvice Fund 32405
‘ : 88,387
Special Revenue Fund Due From: ' :
' Enterprise Fund 103,320
103,320
" Debt Service Fund Due From: . :
General Fund . 4,360
| 4360
‘Capital .Project-s Fund Due From: |
General Fund - ' 70,057
‘ _ 70,057
. Total Due From: - . 67589

E.  DISAGGREGATION OF RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES -

R_éceivables at September 30, 2015, were as follows:

Property Sales and Other  Due From ' Total
Taxes Franchise Govemments Other Funds - Other Receivables .
Tages . SuyenLs
General Fund $ 334722 107,388 § 62402 § 411911, § 7873 § 7,873
Special Revenue Funds - 51319 - 189,566 419421 . 2,14
Debt Service Fund'. - 122,553 . - 4,360 - 126913 ¢
Capital Projects Fund - B - 70,057 - 70,057
Enterprise Fund . - - " - 294 398 264,398
L Total Receivables $ 4572715 % 164707 § 62402 $ 675894 § 721692 3 2081970
- "Less: Allowance for Uncollectible § - 3 . - - (20315) § (20315)
Net Total Receivable : 3 457275 5064707 8 62400 $ 675894 $ 702677 § 2,061,655 .

'Payabigs; at September 30, 2015, were as follows:

Loans, Leases _ :
and Bonds Salaries Due To- Due fo : _ :

Accounts Payable - and  Other Other "~ Total

‘Payable  Cuwwrent Year  Benefits Funds * Governments  Qther - - Payables
General Fund . $ 43465 % - § 70,507 $128258 % 48801 $° 5946 -°§ 296,978
Special Revenue Funds - 5822 - 3,806 405,101 - 15,824 - 430,553
Debt Service - 10,678,546 - 32,405 .- - - 10,710,951
Capital Projects Fund 137,596 - C- ' - . - Co= . 137,596
Enterprise Fund .-B8237- ‘211988 27242 - 110,130 _ . - - 7.548° 455,145

Total Payablé § 285120 $ 10,890,533 § 101555 § 675804 § 48801 $ 29319 $12,03122
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F. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED CASH -

Temporarily restricted cash consists of loan proceeds that were deposited into an escrow account by the

Texas Water Development Board and Orchid Estates LLP. The proceeds are required to be expended

towards the City’s Séwer Project and the development of the City. The expenditures must be approved by
the Texas Development Water Board in order for the funds to be authorized for release from the escrow

account and the developer of Orchid Estates LLP. As of September 30,2015 the temporarlty restricted cash

balance for this account totaled $ 728,809, :

G. CAPITAL ASSET ACTIVITY

Capital asset activity for the City for the year ended September 30, 2015, was as follows:

Primary Government

Beginning ) o ) Ending
Balance " Additions Retirements - Adiustments Balance -
Governmental Activities: ‘
Land ©§ 3467659 § - 8 - $ - § 3,467,659
Buildings & Improvcments 5,753,663 19,549 : - - 5,773,212
Furniture and Equipment o 2,574,923 378,450 - (109,336) - 2,844,037
Construction In Progress - 899,849 1,346,250 - - . 2,246,099
Infrastructure : ' . 21,539,452 526,449 - - 22,065.901
Totals at Historic Cost $ 34235546 -§ 2270608 _(109.336) b - § 36396908
Less Accumulated Depreciation: . : :
Total Accumulated Depreciation - . {16,532.928) (881,692} 88.603 88.603  (17.328.680)
* Governmental Activitics Cap:tat Assets, $17,702618 § 1389006 § (20,734) $___88603 §$.19.068227
Net ) . ’
Business-type Activities: L ' -
Land - N 5 25110 - _ - ‘ - % 25110
Construction in Progress : 9,190,827 49,692 : - - 9,035,638
Fuiniture and Equipment 606,923 344,893 . - 951,816
Infrastructure : *5,924,606 204,380 . ' - 6,125,486
Buildings and Improvements 1,690,263 - . S - . 1690263
- Totals at Historic Cost $.17437729 § 599465 -§ - h - $.17.832.313
Less Accumulated Depreciation . : . o
Total Accumulated Depreciation (2.299.678) (327.904) = 62,410 (2.565.172)
Business-type ACthlthS Capltal Assets, $15,138051 §__ 271361 % = . . 62410 § 15267141
NeL . ) : o o
Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as
foliows ) . :
General Government ‘ ' . - §223,119
Public Safety ' C 436,316
. Public Works - ’ : Co 108,293
Health & Welfare . _ 20,468
Cullure and Recreation . . i 13,744
. Economic Development & Assistance 79,752
Total Depreciation Expense , : $881.692

36



"H.  BONDS AND LONG-TERM NOTES PAYABLE

At September 30, 2015, long-term debt oohsisted of the following:
Governmental Generai Long Term Debt: |

$2 568,000 Series 2007 Certificate of Obligation with annual interest rate of
4,39% to 4.47%; Original date of issuance on January 18, 2008 and maturity
date on September 15, 2026.

$2 485 000 Series 2011 General Obligation Refunding Bonds. Orrgmal Issue
Date is October 14, 2011 Maturrty date is September 15, 2023. Annual interest rate
of2.31%, .

$1,250,000 Serles 2012 Tax Increment Revenue and errted Tax Certrﬁcates of
Obligation(TIRZ). Original Issue Date is August 21, 2012 '
 Maturity date is August 15, 2022 . Annual interest rate of 3.7%.

Note Payable to Happy State Bank dated September 20, 2010 in the original amount

of $229,306.00 for the purchase of Police Vehicles; Maturrty date November 15, 2015 _' _

with an interest rate of 5.82%.

During the year 2011, the City was approved financial assistance from the Texas Water
Development Board in the amount of $9,595,000, with 100% of such loan to be forgiven,
all as is more specifically set forth in the application. No debt obligations are to be
assumed by the City for the loan dnd no taxes and/or revenues are requlred to be pledged
by the City. : .

Note Payable to The Bank of New York, dated July 22, 2013 in the orlgmaI amount of
$500,000; Matunty dated August 1, 2028 with an interest rate of 3 25%

Note Payable to-The Bank of New York, dated July 22,2013 in the orrgmal amount of
~ $500,000; Matu_rity dated August 1, 2028 with an inferest rate of 3.25% .

Note Payable to Bank of New York Mellon in the amount of $2,925,000 for. the
construction of the city recreation center funded through the Urban County
CBDG Program :

Note Payable to Ally Financial, dated Malch 13,2014 in the amount of $26 906, for

the purchase of a 2014 Chevrolet Van for Senior Center Maturlty date March 13,2016 -

with an interest rate of 6, 84%

Note Payable to Compass Bank dated August 1, 2014 in the original amount of
$1,955,000 for TIRZ Pro;ects Matul lty date February 25, 2029 with an interest rate
of 3.6%. :

Note Payable to Motorola, dated November 1, 2014 in the original amount of $140, 554
for Radios; Maturlty date November 1, 2017 with an interest rate of 3,19%.

Note Payable to Compass Bank, dated in n the original amount of $1,250,000 for TIRZ
ProjectS' Maturity date with an interest rate of 3.7%,

Note Payable to Scheﬂz Bank and Trust, dated January 21, 2015 in the amount of _
$72 553 for two vehicles; Maturtty date March I, 2017 wrth af inferest rate of 4.153%.
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Note Payable to USDA, dated March 4,2014 in the origiﬁal amount of $500,000 for
the Construction of the new Fire Station; Maturity date June 15, 2043 with an ..

interest rate of 3.125%. 482,000
Total General Long Term Debt ' - $19.543 289
Enterprlse Funds General Long Term Debt:
Note Payable to Lone Star National Bank dated October 27, 2011 in the original
amount of $175,000 for the purchase of a Cash Flow; Ten annual payments of . . :
$10,500; interest rate of 6.0% - : . . _ ' $ 134,266
Note Payable to Government Capital Corp, dated February 28, 2012 in the originei
amount of $834,296.85 for the purchase of Solid Waste Eqmpment Maturity date
February 15 2017 with an mterest rate of 3.447% 339,713
Note Payable to Schertz Bank and Trust, dated Septembet 10, 2015 in the original
amount of $300,377 For the purchase of a Brush Truck; Maturlty date October 1, :
2022 of with an interest rate of 3.748%. -.300,377
Note Payable to Schertz Bank and Trust, dated September 10, 20 15 in the original
amount.of $33,934 For the purchase of a Brush Truck Maturlty date October L, - _

" 20220f with an interest rate of 3. 524% 33,934
Note Payable to Compass Bank, dated August 1, 2014 in the original amount of -
$315,000 for SW Capacity Buy as well as SW improvement & equipment; Maturity s
(_:late February 25, 2029 with an interest rate of 3.6% - 300,000 -
Total Enterprise Fund Long Term Debt $ 1,108,290

Thére are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the general obligation bond indenture.
‘Management has indicated that the City is in comphance with all mgn:ﬁcant hmltatlons and restrictions at
September 30,2015 -

The city issued $2,485,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds — Serigs 2011 to provide resources to
~ cover the costs of issuance to purchase qualifying securities that were placed in an itrevocable trust for the
purpose of generating resources for all future debt service payments of the refunded debt, Series 1999 and -
Series 2008. The aggregate difference between the refunding debt and refunded debt is $418,274. The
economic gain on this transaction is a net present value of $368,201. Accordingly, the trust account assets
and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not mcluded in the District’s ﬁnanclal statements.

I.  DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS — BONDS/NOTES PAYABLE

Debt service requirements for bonds/nofes payabie areas follows:

~ GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS ENTERPRISE FUNDS
. Year Ending . Year Ending :
September 30 | Principal Interest September 30 | Principal Interest
2016 10,578,546 303,321 | 2016 - 211,988 . 35,352 :
2017 589,303 282,133 | 2017 368,242 | 29472 |
2018 1,014,437 256,529 79,160 19,714

2018
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1,006,089

230,770

16,598

. Liabilities

K. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

2019 2019 69,053
2020 - 1,034,138 205,684 | 2020 - . 70,892 14,039
2021-2025 3,308,856 594,425 | 2021-2025 213,665 35,785
2026-2030 1,322,920 129,192 | 2026-2030 100,000 9,000
2031-2035 93,000 395631 o
2036-2040 115,000 23,750
2041-2043 - - 81,000 5,125 - R
Total 19,543,289 2,070,491 | Total. 1,108,290 | 159,961
J. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term activity for the year ended September 30, 2015, was as follows:
Bepinning : : * Ending Due Within
g N Addifions -~ Reductions - Adjustments Batance One Year
Governmental Activities: o ' ‘ e e C
Bonds and Notes Payable: e o o : . '
General Obligation Bonds -$ 7.236,000- § 950,000 '§ (533,000) % 28,000 §$7,681,000 § 499,000
Loans Payable 11.966,688 213.107 (317.507) - 11.862.288 _ 10,179,546
Total Bonds and Notes Payable (819202688 . § 1.163.107 - § (850,507) © § - 28.000 . $19.543.28% § 10.678.546
Beginning . o : Ending. Dug Within
. Additions = Reductions . Adjustments Balance One Year
Eniferprise Activities: ' : ' ) ‘
Notes Payable: o . i
Combination Tax & Rev; Bonds 315,000 % . - (15,0000 - 300,000 15,000
Loans Payable 657,312 334,311 - (198.140) - 807,203 196,988
Total Bonds and Notes Payable $ 972312 § 334311 $. (2131400 § . - §$ 11082008 211988
" Total Enterprises Act_iv_ities Long-term $ 972312 § ﬁi,;!! M $_________ - $.1,108290 8 211,988

-Govemrnental funds repmt deferred inflows in connection with recelvables for 1evenues that are not
considered to be available to_liquidate Habilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received but not yet eamed

As of August 31 2015 the various components of deferred outfiows and. mﬂows of IESOUTCes are as

follows:
At the fund level financial statements the C:ty has the foilowmg Deferred Inflows of Resom ces:

Debt Servwe Fund Total

-General Func_!

Property Tax, nnaﬁai_lable ' $341,504* $122,553 . $464,057

L. TAXINCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE

The City of Alton, on December 29, 2009 thtough Oldmanee 2009-09 created “Reinvestment Zone
Number One, City of Alton, Texas. Section 7. The Ordmance reads as follows:
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This hereby created and established  in the depository bank of- the City, a fund to call the
“REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER ONE, CITY OF ALTON, TEXAS, TEXAS TAX INCREMENT
FUND” (HEREIN CALLED THE “Tax Increment Fund™). Money in the Tax Increment Fund, from -
whatever source, may be disbursed from the Tax Increment Fund, invested and paid as permitted by the. Act
or by any agreements entered into pursuant to the Act, or as otherwise authorized by law.

As of the end of fiscal year 2015 the County of Hidalgo transferred $S7 635 for fiscal years 2014, whaie
the City transferred $73,986 to meet the requirements of the TIRZ, agreement for the fiscal year.

. M. ~ DEFINED BENEFIT i’E_NSION PLAN
Plan Description

The City of Alton participates as one of 360 plans in the nontraditional joint contributory, hybrid defined
benetit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is an agency
. created by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8,
-Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal
employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management of the
System with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of the
Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS’s defined benefit
pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a.
“publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at www.tmrs.com.

All eligrble employees of the city are required to pa'rticipate in TMRS.
Benefits Provided '

TMRS prowdes retrrement disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the governmg
body of the city, within the options available in the state Statutes govelmng TMRS,

At retirement, the benefit is. calculated as 1f the sum of the employee’s contributions, with interest, and the
crty-ﬁnanced monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members may choose to
receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payments options. "Members may also choose to receive a
portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, ot 36 monthly
payments, which canniot exceed 75% of the member’s deposits and interest.

- Employees covered b'j benefit terms.

" At thé December 31, 2014 valuation and measurement date, the foliowmg employees were cevered by the- .
benefit terms:

Ineetive_ employees or beneﬁciaries currently receiving beneﬁts_ - 9
Inactive emptoyees entitted to but not yet receiving .beneﬁts.. } 63
| Active employees | ‘ 74
.Totat .Elnrployee_s‘ - R ' 146
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Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross earnings, and
the city matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body of
the.city. Under the state law goyeming' TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually -
by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuar ially determined rate
is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year with
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability, : :

Emp!oyees for the Clty of Alton were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross eamings during the
fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City of Alton were 8.70% and 8.69% in calendar years 2014 and
2015, respectively. The city’s contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30, 2015, were

$127,868, and were equal to the requlred contributions, '

" Net Pension Llab:hty

The city’s Net Pension Liability (NFL) was measured as of December' 31, 2014, and the Total Pension
Llablllt)’ (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pensmn L1ab1l:ty was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
that date :

Actuarial ‘assumptions" :

The Total Pension Laabﬂxty in the Deeember 31, 2014 actuanal valuatlon was determmed usmg the
followmg actuarla] assumptions:

Inﬂatlon S e  3.0% per year
Overall payroll growth © 3.5% to 12.00% per year
- Investment Rate of Return 7.0%, net of pension plan infestmeﬁt expense, including inflation -

_Sa!ary increases were based on a service-related-table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and
Dbeneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table, with male
rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. The rates ‘are projécted on a fully
generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements, For disabled annuitants, the
gender-distinct RP2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table is used, with slight adjustments. '

Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2014, valuation were based on the results of actuarial
' experience studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period January 1, 2006 through December -
131, 2009, first used in the December 31, 2010 valuation. Healthy post-retirement mortality rates and
annuity purchase rates were updated based on a Mortahty Experience Investigation Study covering 2009
through 2011, and dated December 31, 2013. These assumptions were first used in the December 31, 2013,
" valuation, along with a change to the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. Assumptlons are
:ev1ewed annually No additional changes were made for the 201 4 valuation.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 1nvestments is 7-.0%. The pension plan’s policy in
regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the TMRS Board of
Trustees. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as
well as the production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS. -

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a buii'ding-block-
- method in which best estimate _range's of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
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pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class, These ranges are
' combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of -
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and
best estimates of arithmetic real rates of relurn for each major asset class are summarized in the following
table: : : :

ASSET CLASS . TARGET ALLOCATION ..

LONG TERM EXPECTED. RATE OF

RETURN . -

Domestic Equity 17.5% . 4.80% -
International Equity- 17.5% 6.05%
Core Fixed Income 30.0% - 1.50%
Non-Core Fixed Income 10.0% 3.50%
Real Return _ o 5.0% 1.75%
‘Real Estate . 10.0% 5.25%

. Absolute Return ' 5.0% 4.25%
Private Equity o 5.0% " 8.50%

Total : T 1000%
: DtscountRate

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 7.0%. The projection of cash flows used )
to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the rates
specified in statute, Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position was projected to
be available to make all projectecl future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was apphed to all penods of

pro_;ected beneﬁt payments to determme the Total Pension Liabmty

Net Pehsion

_Sen'éitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

4

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary

Liability . Net Position . Liability .~

@ () (@-(b) -
Balance at 12/31/2013 3 203,941 2,814,862 389,079
Changes for the yeat: ‘
Service cost 376,918 - 376,918
Interest 234,794 - 234,794
Change of benefit terms - - - -,
Difference between expected and | (153,570) - (153,570)

actual experience : s '
Changes of assumptions - : - -
Contributions - employer < 194,604 194,604
Conlributions - employee - 158.584 158,584 .
Net investment income - 161,110 161,110
Benefit payments, including (76,411) (76 41 i) -
| refunds of employee : :
| contributions .

Administrative expense = (1,681) (1,681)
Other changes ] o {138) (138)
Net changes 381,731 436,068 (54,337)
‘Balance at 12/31/2014 - 3,585,672 3,250,930 334,742




The following preseht‘s the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.0%, as
well as what the City’s net pension Hability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1~
percentage-point lower (6.0%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.0%) than the current rate:

1%.Decrease in S 1% Increase in
‘ ' Discount Rate 6% Discount Rate 7% Discount Rate 8%
City’s net pension Hability " $1,020,690 $334,742 © $(203,148) -

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Posit_‘ion

Detailed information about the. pension plan’s Fiducian‘y‘Net Position is available'in a separately-issued
TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at www. fiers.com.

_Pension Expense and Deférred Outflows of Resources and-Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions ' : ' : ' o

For the yeaq' ended September 30, 2015, the city recognized pension eXpe'ns.e. of $218,353,

At September 30, 2015, the city :'e}ﬁorted-defe:'red _oijtﬂbws of resources and deferred inflows.of 'resoﬁrct:s
- related to pensions from the following sources: ' '

Deferred Outflows of Resoufces _ k Def_erred Inflows of Resources

Differences between expected and actual - o ($153,570) PR ‘ o ($118,512_)
_ economic experience L S o '

Changes in ac_tﬁar_ial assumptions . 5 - ‘ ST $ -

Differénce between projected and actual ~ ~ ° § 135,930 L S $ 28,744

investment earnings. ' . ' S S
_Contributions subsequent  to the R 7

measurement date December 31, 2013 o

Total . - S0 ($89,768)

$190,720 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date- will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the
year ending September 30, 2015, Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources -
related to pensions will be recbgnizcd in pension.expense as follows: '

- YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31
2016 : ' ($27.872)
2017 - ' ($27872)
2018 S ($27,872)
2019 - ' 3
2020 o ' . B
Thereafter B ($89,768)
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N CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Préjépted Summary of Facilities -
' ' ' Negotiated

. . : . Projected Contract
__Project ' o ~ Architect o Completion Date - Amount

FM 676 Project  L&G Engineering August, 2017 $ 375,000
0. LITIGATION
‘The City is the defendant in several légal proceedings arising from its operations, The City’s
administration believes the outcome of these proceedings, if not favorable to the City, will not matcrlalky
. affect the C1ty s financial position and therefore no a]lowances have been made
P. . SUBSEQUENT EVENTS -
The City considered all subsequent events through April 22, 2016
Q. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
The Clty recognizaed prior perlod adjustments in the Government Wlde Financial Statements totalmg
($2,495,854). The adjustment corrected the beginning Net Assets due to the implementation of GASB
- Statement number 68, recognizing the prior Net Pension. Liability. The City also recognized prior period

adjustmens in the Enterprise Funds totaling ($4,229). The following adjustments were made to bcgmmng
fund balances were necessary to reﬂcct the actual balances at beginning of the year:

FUND : : TOTAL
Utility Fund _ - §271,627
Solid Waste Fund _ ‘ ($275,856)

During fiscal year 2015, the City adopted GASB Statement Ne. 68 for Accounting and Reporting for
" Pensions. With GASB 68, the City must assume their proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability of
the Texas Municpal Retirement System. Adoption of GASB 68 required a prior period adjustment to report
the effect of GASB 68, retroactively, The amount of the prior period adjustment is a reduction of
($2,495,894) to our September 30, 2014 Net Position. The restated beginning Net Position is ($292,712).
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CITY OF ALTON, TX EXHIBITG-6

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
TEXASMUNICIPALRETIREMENT SYSTEM ) '

: SEPTEMBER30, 2015
2015
A. Total Pension Liability
Service Cost ' : . : R $ . 376918
Intf_frest (on the Total Pension Liabiiity} _ o L ] IR 234,794
Changes of Benefit Terms - ' - ‘ S : -0-
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience ' . . : o : : {153,570}
_ Changes of Assumptions . ) : ; _ - _ ' 3 -0-
Benefit Payments mcludmg reﬁ_mds of employee contributions ' S o (76411
7 Net change in Total Pension Liability -. . o ) 5 o . § - 381,731
Total Pension Liability - Beginning : L ‘ . o ' 3,203,941
Total Pension Liability - Ending S g 3585672
_‘B. Total Fiduciary Net Positien .
Contributions - Employer o S ' ‘ S 194,604
Contriubtions - Employee - . ‘ ' o _ o D : 158,584
Net Investment Income B _ ' e ‘ 161,110
Benefit Payments, including refunds of employee contriburions_ _ _ ) ) o ‘_ (76,4] 13}
Administrative Expense 7 . ‘ ' S S . : : - (1,681)
Other o _ ' - ()
Net Change‘in Plan Fiduciary Net Position ' S _ : - § - 436,068
.Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning ’ : i ‘ : ) _ 2,814,862
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending ’ ) ‘ . . _ ' $ 3,250,930
C. NetPension Liability o o | : ' $ 334,742
D. Plan Fiduciary Net Position s a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability _ ' o I : 90.66% -
E. Covéred Employee Payroll - ' o $ ©2,265479
F. N et Pension Liability as a Percéntage of Covered Employee Payroll : _ o 14.78%

Note: GASB 68, Paragraph 46, a and b requires that the data in this schedule be preseuted for the time period covered by the measwement

. date rather than the governmental entity's current fiscal year.

Note:  Only one year of data is presented in accordance with GASBS #68, paragraph 138, "The Lntormatron for all periods for the 10-year
schedules that are required to be presented as required supplementary information may not be available initially. In these cases, during the
transition period, that information should be presenied for as many years as are available, The schedules should not inclide information that
is.not measured in accordance with the requirements of this Statement.’
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- CITYOFALTON,TX - L o - EXHIBITG-7
"'SCHEDULEOFCONTRIBUTIONS ' ' '
’I'EXASMUNICIPALRETIREMENTSYSTEM

SE‘.PTEMBER30 2015
2015
Actuarially Determined Contribution - ' . S $ 218,353
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contributions o _ . 218,353
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) : _ ‘ _ :
Covered Employee Payroll . ' ’ : _ R 2,534,439
Contributions as a Pereentage of Covered Employee Payroll ) _. o _ ‘ ‘ 8.62%

Note: GASB 68, Paragraph 81 requires that the data in this schedule be presented as of the governmental entity's current ﬁscal year as
opposed to the time penod covered by the measurement date.

Note: Only one year of data is presented in accordance with GASB 68, Paragraph 138. "The information for all periods' for the 10-year
schedules that are required to be presented as required supplementary information may not be available initiatly. In these cases, during the

transition period, that information should be presented for as many years as are available. The schedules should not include mformatmn that
is not measured in accordance with the requu‘cments of this Statement.”



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND -
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES -



. CITYOFALTON,TX
- COMBININGBALANCESHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2015

-Development Development Facilties & Utban Couhty

Corporation Corporation . Infrastructur Grant
A . 4B "~ Fund Fund
~ ASSETS _ : o o

“Cash and Cash Equivalents . : $ 77019 § 76816 $ 184,069 § -
Taxes Receivable . B . -
Receivables (Net) ‘ ' . 27962 27,962 - C 2,1
Due from Other Funds - ‘ A . - - (2,141
Total Assets | _ 0§ 104981 $ 104778 . 184069 S -
LIABILITIES _ L o . _ . _

Accounts Payable T S $ 817 § 4770 § S -
Wages and Salaries Payable - o ‘ 2,131 : 1,675 - -
Due to Other Funds - . ' o - -
Due to Others - : . - - 8,681 -
Total Liabilities | ' 2948 6445 gesl -
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES o

Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes - - - -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources L - . - -
FUND BALANCES . .

Retirement of Long-Term Debt o : . - ‘ . - -

Other Assigned Fund Balanée ' ' 102,033 98333 175,388 _ .

Total Fund Balances ' o 102033 98333 - 175388 .

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances $ 104981 $ 104778 § 184069 $ .

~ The notes to the financial statéments are an intégral pairt of this statement,
' ‘ K



EXHIBITH-1(Contd)

3

Total
Siezures & Alton. Volunteer Alton Nonmajor Debt
Forfeitures Youth CLub TIRZ . PEG Firefighter Chamber of Special . : Service
Fund Activity Fund Fund Fund Fund - Commerce Revenue Funds Fund

$ 41913 § - 1353 % 1,004 17580 § = 2678 % 81 3 403,303 § .,41,241.

- - - 1,395 - - 1395 . 122,553

- - - - - - 58,065 -

- - ~ 88387 . - - - 86246 4360

41913 % 1.,‘353' $ 89,391 18;975 % 2678 % 871 § 549,009 § ‘168,154

$ 86 $ - $ - - 8 - % =% sg3s. -
- . - - - - - . 3,806 -

- 3,777 - - - 1,325 5,102 32,404

“7,143 . - . - - - T15824 0 Co-

.7,379 3,777 - - - 1,325 :30,5'55 B 32404 .

- - - - - - - 122,553

- . - - - - - " 122,553

- - - - - - “ 13,197

34,534 (2.424) 89,391 18,975 2,678 (454) 518,454 " -

34,534 (2.424) ' 89,391 18975 2,678 (454) 518,454 _13,197

$ 41913 § 1353 § 89391 § 18975 § - 2678 § &1 $ . 549009 $ 168,154




S EXHIBITH-1
- CITYOFALTON, TX .

COMBTNH\IGBALANCESHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2015 . o
\ o - Total : Total
TIRZ Debt Nonmajor Nonmajor
Service -  DebtService  Govermnmental
Fund - Funds Funds
ASSETS , S
Cash and Cash Equivalents R 5 1,198 § 42439 § 445,742
Taxes Receivable . : o o - 122553 123948
Receivables (Net)- o o - - 58,065
Due from Other Funds - : o - 4,360 - 90,606
_ Total Assets g ' % 1,198°% 169352 § 718361
LIABILITIES _ | , S ,
“Accounts Payable . ' $ -5 0 -5 5,823
Wages and Salaries Payable : ) - ' - - 3,806
-Due to Other Funds o C ‘ . - © 32404 137,506
Due'to Others - B - - I5824
Total Liabilities _ o o 2404 62959
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES | | B
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes ' R - 122,553 122,553
Total Defcrreé Inflows of Resources . _ ) 122,553 122,553
* FUND BALANCES : : . .
Retirement of Long-Term Debt - . o 1,198 ‘ 14,395 14,395 '
Other Assigned Fund Balance o - L 518454
Total Fund Balances ' o - 1,198 = 14,395 532,849
Total Liabilities, D;:ferred Inflows & Fund Balances $ o 1,]98_ $ - 169352 § . 7&8,36 ‘

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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. _ CITYOFALTON, TX
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUNDBALANCES-NONMAJORGOVERNMENTALFUNDS

FOR THE YEARENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2015

" Development
Corporation
4A -

Development

Corporation

4B

Facilties &

Infrastructur

Fund

Urban County
Grant
Fund

REVENUES:
Taxes:
Property Taxes
- General Sales and Use Taxes
Penalty and Interest on Taxes
Intergovernimental Revenue and Grants
Charges for Services
Forfeits '
Special Assessments
Investment Earnings
~ Rents and Royalties
Confributions & Donations from Private Sources
Other Revenue o

Total Revenues

" EXPENDITURES:
LCutrent: ‘
Public Safety
" Culture and Recreation .
Conservation and. Development
Debt Service: ' S
Bond Principal
Other Debt Principal
Bond Interest
Other Debt Interest
Fiscal Agent's Fees
Capital Outlay:
Capital Outlay
* Total Expenditures-

Excess (Defici encyj of Revenucé Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHERFINANCING SOURCES(USES):
Transfers In -
Transfers Out (Use)

Total Other Financ'ing' Sources (Uses)

" Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - October 1 (Beginning)

Fund Balance - September 30.(Endi_ng)

182,760

$

- 182,760

$ -

144,725

123,757
146

§ .

205,632

268,628

205,632

182,863

166,602

. 27,339

14,859

149,794 .

27,339

14859

79997

9,694

. 190,000

5938

208,800

191,992

79,997

205,632

25.937) -

(9,128)

188,631

(125,000)

(25.937)
127,970

(9,128)
107,461

(125,000)

63631

111,757

102,033

$

98,333

$ -

The notes to the financial statements-are an integral part of this statement.

$ 175388



 EXHIBIT H-2 (Cont'd)

Total

Siezures & Alton o Voluntear . Alton .Nomn'ajor Debt-
Forfeitures Youth-CLub - TIRZ PEG Firefighter Chamber of ‘Special Service
Fund Activity Fﬁn_d Fund .Fund © Fund Commerce Revenue Funds Fund
3 - 8 - - - -8 -3 -'$ 34399
. - - - - - 365,520 SR
. - . . - - . 20,658
- .- " 131,620 . - - 337,252 .
- 5,807 - . . . 150,532 -
5,599 - - - - - - 15,599 -
: . - . - - 123,757 -
53 2. 18 B L 3 2 " 446 201
- 300, - . - - ©30 .
. s - - 2,170 15,700 17870 -
- 11,318 - . 5,556 D 6,025 22899
5,652 17427 131,638 - 5,571 2,173 21,727 1,024,175 - 364,855
11,652 - - - 2,064 o 13,716 -
. 17,085 - - - 22,456 139,541 - -
- : - - - - . 326,090 . -
. . . . - - ' . . 358486
. - - . - - 244678 9,000
- . . - - - - 131415
- - - - - . 35,656 18,761 -
- - . - - - - 250,
- - - - - . 79,997 L.
11652 - 17,085 - : 2064 22456 739678 517912
£6,000) 342 131,638 5,571 109 o (7129) 284497 . (153,057) -
- : S ; - R | k<
*(25,288) - (98,000) L= - - (248288) .
(25,288) - © (98,000) - . - (248,288) 172,334
© (31,288) . 342 33638 5571 1% (729) 36209 19277
65822 - (2,766) " 55753 13,404'_ 2,560 5 482,245. - (6,080)
$ 34,534 § (2,424) 89391 '§ 18975 2,678 '$ (45) § 518454 3% 13,197

st



‘ CITY OF ALTON, TX
- COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
* FUNDBALANCES-NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FORTHE YEARENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2015

$ - 14395

Total - Total
TIRZ Debt - Nonmajor Nonmajor
* Service Debt Service  Governmental |
Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES:
© Taxes: = : '
Property Taxes $ - % 34399 § 343,996
General Sales and Use Taxes ‘ - C - © 365,520
- Penalty and Interest on Taxes - 20,658 20,658
Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants - - 337,252
Charges for Services - - 150,532
Forfeits - - 5,599
Special Assessments - - 123,757
_Investment Earnings 9 210 656
- Rents and Royalties - - 300
Contributions & Donatlons from Private Sourccs' - - - 17,870
Other Revenue - - 22,899
Total Revenues -9 364,804 1,389,039
EXPENDITURES: |
Current: ‘ )
Public Safety : - - 13,716
Culture and Recreation - - 39,541
Conservation and Development - - 326,090
- Debt Service: .
Bond Principal _ - 358,486 358,486
Other Debt Principal 205,000 214,000 458,678
Bond Interest S 131,415 131,415
Other Debt Interest 110,812 129,573 © 165229
Fiscal Agent's Fees S 250 250
Capital Outlay: ‘
_ Capital Outlay - - - 79,997
Total Expendltures I315,8.]2 333,724 1,573,402
Excess (Deﬂmency) of Revcnues Over (Under) (315,803) (468,860) " (184,363)
Expenditures . :
OTHER FINANCINGSOURCES (USES) e
Transfers In 317,000 489,334 489334
_Transfers Out (Use) : - - (248,288)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 317,000 489,334 241,046
Net Change in Fund Ba]ance 1,197 20,474 56,683
Fund Balance - October | (Begmmng) i - {6,079) " 476,166
. Fund Balance - September 30 (Ending) $ 1,198

$ . 532849

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,

EXHIBITH-2
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Noel Garza, CPA rPC
. Certified Public Accountant' '
' 4416 S. McColl Rd.

Edmburg, TX 78539
956-393-8743 -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL RE'PO.RTiNG‘AND
‘ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' PERFORMED iN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

' To the Honorable Mayor and the Clty Couneil
of the City of Alton, Tx
Alton Tx

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
‘standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards issued by the Comptrolier General
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, -
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Alton, Tx; as of and for the year ended September 30,2015,
and the related notes to the financial statemnents, which collectively comprise the City of Alton, Tx s basic financial
" statements and have Issuec! our report thereon dated April 22, 2016

Internal _Control over Financial Reporting

“In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Alton, Tx’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal controf) to determine the andit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City of Alton, Tx’s internal control. Accordmgly, we do. not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Aiton, Tx’s internal control, : Co

A deficiency in internal control exists when the das1gn or operatlon of a control does not allow managcment or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal controf such that there
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
" detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deﬁciency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal contrel that is less severe than a material weakness yet 1mportant cnough to merit attentlon by those charged with
governance. : =

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was

not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies

and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations,
"during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses,

Compliance and Other Matiers

As part of obtaining teasonable assurance about whether the City of Alton, Tx’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the détermination of financial
- statement amounts, However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accmdingly,' we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of
noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standard and which is
descrlbed in the accompanying schedule of fi ndmgs and questioned costs as 1tem #2015-01.

We noted certain malters that we :epo: ted to managcment of City of Aiton, Tx, in a separate letter dated Apul 22,2016.

Member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants & Texas Sociefy of Certified Public Accountants .
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Purpose 6f th.is Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performied in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the

entity’s internal control and compllance Accordingly, this commumcatlon is'not suitable for any other purpose. '

Feet %@% aE0 S,
Noel Garza, CPA,‘ PC .

Edinburg, Tx
April 22,2016
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Noel Garza CPA PC
- Certified Public Accountant .
4416 S. McColl Rd: '

Edmburg, TX 78539
956 393 8743

" INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT ON COMPLEANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM ;
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OIVIB CIRCULARA 133

. To the Superintendent and Board of Trustees of the
City of _A_[to_n, Tx
Alton, Tx
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Alton, Tx’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements' described in the OMB

. Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City of Alton, Tx’s _
" major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2015, City of Alton, Tx’s major federal programs are identified . .

in the summary of auditor’s results se_c_tion of the accompanying schedule of ﬁndings and questioned costs.’

Management’s Responsibility ' : L
. ‘Management is responsible for comphance with the requsremems of laws, regulat:ons contracts and grants apphcablc to.
its federal progl ams, '

. Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Alton Tx $ major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above, We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Americe; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance ‘about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
~ onamajor federal program oceurred. An audit includes examininig, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Alton, Tx’s -

compliance with those requ1rements and pea forming such other procedures as we cons:dered necessary in the
c:rcumstances : :

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on comphance for each major federal program

" However, our audit does not prowde a legal determination of the City of Alton, Tx’s comphance

' Opmmn on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Clty of Alton, Tx, complied, in all material respects, with the types of comphance reguirements
referred to above that could have a d:rcct and material effect on each of i 1ts major federal programs for the year ended
Septembel 30, 2015. : . :

Report on Internal Control over Compliauce

Management of the City of Alton, Tx, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we conmdex ed the City of Alton, Tx’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that

- could have a direct.and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB: Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordmg]y, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Aiton Tx’s internal control over comphance

Member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants & Texas Society of Certified Public Accountants

33



A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect -
and correct, noncormpliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis, A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasohable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
‘of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies; in internal control over compliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance, - ‘

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies, We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over comipliance that we
consider to be material weaknésses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. -

The purpose of this report on internal control over comphanc& is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal

control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 1equ1remcnts of OMB Clrcular A-133, Accordmgly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

,?Zae/ é’ﬂg&a '&@4,:?&
Noel Garza, CPA, PC

Edinburg, Tx )
September 22, 2016
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‘ ‘ CITY OF ALTON
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

I~ Summary of the Auditor's Results;

A. The type of report issued: o ‘ Unmodified opinion.
B. Internal control over financial statements: i ' :

Material Weakness(es) indentified? _— No

Significant Deficiency(ies) identified which o

were not considered material weaknesses? No
C. Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? No

D. Federal Awards: Type of Report on Comphance
with major programs. : _ B Unmodified opinion

E. Internal control over Major P]Ogl ams: - o _ :
Material Weakness(es) identified? _ ‘No .

Slgmﬂcant Deficiency(ies) identified which -
were not considered material weaknesses? _ No

F.. Findings & Questioned Costs for Federal Awards as
defined under Section . .510(a). OMB Circular 133 " No

F.. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A’

And Type B Federal programs. ‘ 7 . _ $300,000
G. Auditee qual:ﬂed aga Eow—r_lsk_auditec? : I . Yes
H. Major Federal Progrém(s) : ' C ' American Recovery and Reinvestment Act

C.FD.A #10.780

II. Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Whlch Are Requ:red To Be Reported in Accordance wnth
Generally Accepted Government Audtting Standards. : :

2015-01 Exgendltures over Appropriations
- Criteria: Texas Local Government Code, Title 4, Subtitle A. Chapter 102 Mumclpal Budget establishes the law
‘ govcmmg the annual General Fund budget reqmrcments for the City,

‘Condition: The C:ty 5 Generai Fund. had excess expenditures over appropuatsons totaling $181,900, for the year
" ended September 30, 2015. : '

Cause: The City did not propetly amend the budget to allow for the expenditures.
- Effect: Thé City was not in compliance with the Texas Local Government Code.

Recommendation: The City should review their budget thmughout the year and propose amendments to ensure
‘compliance with State Law.
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Auditee’s Regponse.: The City ‘will ;e{!icw and update internal - procedures to ensure full compliance with all-
applicable Local Government Code requirements, - Contact: Mrs. Rosie Tello, Finance Director,
(956)432-0760. - : ' o

‘IIL. Findings Related to Federal Awards.

" None
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CITY OF ALTON - .
.. SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

None
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(CITY OF ALTON X

EXHIBITK-1 .

SCHEDULEOF EXPENDITURES OFFEDERAL AWARDS
FORTHE YEARENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

(1 I o @ 3 : ' @
FEDERALGRANTOR/ - Federal ?as_s-Throu'gh
PASS-THROUGHGRANTOR/ - - CFDA Entity Identifying Federal -
PROGRAMor CLUSTER TITLE Number ~ Number Expenditures

"ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECETION AGENCY
Pa_'sseci through Texas Water Development Board
Clean Water State Revolving Fund - 66.458 Gl1i016 ' $. 237
Total Passed through Texas Water Deveiopment Board ' 237
"TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECETION AGENCY 237 -
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE.
Direct Programs
'EDA Grant 11.300 29363
Total Direct Programs 29363
TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE - 29,363
u.s. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Direct Programs 7
ARR.AGrant _ 10.780  TX-00-04 - 500,000
" Total Direct Programs 500,000
TOTAL U.S, DEPARTMENT OF AGR[CUL’I‘URE - 500,000
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Passed Through Hidalgo County Urban Development De
CommunityDevelopment Block Grant ' _ 14218 ' 205,631 -
Total Passed Through Hidalgo County Urban Development De 205,631
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT 205,631
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 135231



CITY OF ALTON, TX
NOTES ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

‘The City uses the fund types specified by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Special
revenue funds are used to account for resources restricted to, or designated for, specific purposes.
Federal and state financial assistance generally is accounted for in a Spec:al Revenue Fund because it
is restricted for specific purposes.

. The accounting and ﬁnancial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement

focus. . The Governmental Fund types are accounted for using a current financial resources
_measurement focus called the modified accrual basis of accounting. Nearly all Federal grant funds
were accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund which is a Governmental Fund type. With this
measurement focus, only current assets and current labilities and the fund balance are included on the
balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases and decreases in net current
assets, ’ :

The modified acerual basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they
become susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and available, and expenditures in the accounting
period in which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except for unmatured interest on General
Long-Term Débt, which is recognized when due, and certain compensated absences and claims and

- judgments, which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be l:qu:dated with expendab]e
available financial resources, : :

Usually Federal grant funds are considered to be earned to the extent of expenditures made under the
provisions of the grant. When Federal grant funds are received before related cxpend1tm es are made,
they are recorded as deferred revenues. :

The period of availability for federal grant funds for the purpose of liquidation of outstanding.
obligations made on or before the ending date of the federal project period extends 30 days beyond the
federal project period ending date, in accordance with provisions in Section H, Period of Avaikabtllty
of Federal Funds, Part 3, OMB Circular A-133 Comphance Statement
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